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BUDGET 2019/2020 M are eba

MAYOR'S MESSAGE SHIRE COUNCIL
| present the budget for the Mareeba Shire Council for the 2019/2020 fiscal year.

Consistent with previous budgets of this council, | present a balanced budget with fully funded
depreciation and sound reserves.

This council has for the past five budgets followed a plan for the long-term stability of council
finances, planned and scheduled maintenance of roads, sewerage, water and built assets.
Attention has been paid to the continued development of parks and public spaces across the
Shire, whilst always retaining a strong emphasis on fiscal rectitude.

This budget follows that tradition, with an unwavering view to ensuring the financial future of
the Shire is assured.

Council has determined to raise the general rate by 3%; 2.5% to accommodate the increasing
cost of the provision of sustained services, and an additional 0.5% to rebuild council'sreserves.
A 2.5% increase has been applied to utilities and services to ensure that council is able to
continue to provide these services at a high level of efficiency to our communities.

Council has determined to reduce the cost of registration of neutered animals to just $20 as
an incentive for animal owners to neuter their pets for better animal management in the
Shire.

Of particular focus this year is the final move to equalise the charges for potable domestic
water across the Shire, meaning everyone on a potable supply now pays the same cost for
access and usage.

Once again capital expenditure resides at record levels totalling $27.7 million, across the
whole spectrum of Shire services, including gravel road re-sheets, replacement of filtration
systems at swimming pools, bitumen road reseals, waste facilities and relining of underground
sewer pipes. This year a walking track from Kuranda to the Barron Falls, funded through the
Kuranda Infrastructure Levy, will vastly improve the visitor experience in this tourism mecca.
Further, council will reconstruct the waste transfer station at the Mareeba landfill at a cost of
$1.1 million as a result of the introduction of the Queensland Government's waste levy to be
introduced from the 1* July.

Council is again indebted to both the Queensland Government and the Federal Government
for their continued contributions to the budget through annual financial assistance grants and
project specific grants which allow for the continuing developing the Shire infrastructure.

| again thank both Councillors and staff for their acceptance of the need for tight budgets and
for their fortitude in bringing it to fruition.

Tom Gilmore
MAYOR
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1. 2019/2020 BUDGETED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 Income Statement

MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Note $ '000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates and charges 32,928 33,748 34,513
Less discounts and pensioner remissions (1,994) (2,044) (2,095)
Net rates and utility charges 1 30,934 31,704 32,418
Fees and charges 1,246 1,277 1,309
Operating grants and subsidies 2 7,216 7,360 7,508
Operating contributions 2 920 938 957
Interest revenue 500 502 504
Works for third parties 1,791 1,836 1,882
Other revenue 3,634 3,846 3,939
Total Operating Revenue 46,241 47,463 48,516
Expenditure
Employee expenses 18,329 18,787 19,257
Materials and services 13,393 13,728 14,071
Depreciation expenses 3 9,730 9,868 10,113
Finance and borrowing costs 4 317 349 343
Total Operating Expenses 41,769 42,732 43,784
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 4,472 4,731 4,732
Capital Income
Contributions from developers - - -
Capital grants and subsidies 2 10,429 2,440 2,440
Profit/(Loss) on sale of asset (830) - -
9,599 2,440 2,440
Net Result 14,071 7,171 7,172
Page 5 of 23
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1.2 Balance Sheet

MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Balance Sheet

at 30 June 2020
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $'000 $'000
Current Assets
Cash assets 41,714 43,305 45,117
Receivables 3,749 3,850 3,936
Inventories 2,954 2,934 2,914
48,417 50,089 51,967
Non-Current Assets
Receivables 47 45 43
Property, plant and equipment 450,050 455,338 460,414
Capital works in progress - - -
450,097 455,383 460,457
TOTAL ASSETS 498,514 505,472 512,424
Current Liabilities
Payables 5,400 5,508 5,618
Interest bearing liabilities 372 384 395
Provisions 413 430 446
6,185 6,322 6,460
Non-Current Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities 7,658 7,274 6,879
Payables 2,073 2,125 2,178
Provisions 3,187 3,170 3,154
12,918 12,569 12,211
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,103 18,890 18,670
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 479,411 486,582 493,754
Community Equity
Retained surplus 479,411 486,582 493,754
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 479,411 486,582 493,754
Page 6 of 23
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1.3 Statement of Cash Flows

MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Borrowing costs

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Subsidies and contributions for new capital

Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of finance leases

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase in cash held

Cash at beginning of reporting period

Cash at end of reporting period

Page 7 of 23

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $'000 $'000
47,792 46,741 47,806
(35,266) (32,557) (33,376)
500 502 504
(227) (258) (249)
12,799 14,428 14,685
(30,106) (14,904) (14,928)
10,429 2,440 2,440
(19,677) (12,464) (12,488)
3,750 - -
(1,625) (340) (352)
(33) (33) (33)
2,092 (373) (385)
(4,786) 1,591 1,812
46,500 41,714 43,305
41,714 43,305 45,117
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1.4 Statement of Changes In Equity

MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of period 465,340 479,411 486,582
Net result for the period 14,071 7,171 7,172
Balance at end of period 479,411 486,582 493,754
Page 8 of 23
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1.5 Notes to The Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30 June 2020

MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

MSC Budget Volume 1 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$'000 $'000 $'000
nrexse
from
1 Rates and Utility Charges 2019/20
Operating income *
General rates 17,705 18,148 150% 18,601
Water 5.887 6,034 150% 6,185
Sewerage 4954 5.078 250% 5,205
Waste 3,807 3,902 150% 4,000
Special rates and charges 575 586 191% 522
Total rates and utility charge revenue 32928 33,748 2a9% 34,513
Less: Discounts 11,594) (1.634) (1,675)
Less: Pensioner remissions 400) [410) (420)
Net rates and utility charges 30,934 31,704 32,418
2 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donati
(i) Recument - government grants and subsidies, and
other contrbutions are analysed as follows
General purpose grants 7.000 7.140 7,283
Government subsidies and grants 216 220 225
Contributions [incl tourist Levies) 920 938 957
Total recurnent revenue 8,136 8,299 8,465
(i) Capital - government grants and subsidies, other
contributions and donations are analysed as follows
Government s ubsidies and grants 10,429 2,440 2,440
Developer Contributions
Tetal capital revenue 10,429 2,440 2,440
3 Depreciation of non-current assets
Buildings 1,357 1,491 1,442
Plant and equipment 542 530 400
Road, drainage and bridge network 3922 4,077 4,208
Water 1472 1,370 1,466
Sewerage 1,482 1519 1,616
Waste 205 143 141
Other assets 750 738 840
9,730 9,868 10,113
4 Finance and Borrowing costs
Finance costs 227 258 249
Bank charges 65 66 68
Other 25 25 26
317 349 343

Page 9 of 23

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 16



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 1 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Appropriations
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$'000 $ '000 $'000
Retained surplus (deficiency) from prior years - - -
Net result for the period from the Income Statement 14,071 7,171 7,172
14,071 7,171 7,172
Transfers (to) from capital account:
(Profit) loss on sale of capital assets 830 - -
General revenue used for capital purposes (534) (377) (388)
Net capital account transfers 296 (377) (388)
Transfer from (to) the constrained works reserve
Transfer from (to) Capital Grants, Subsidies and Contributions (10,429) (2,440) (2,440)
Retained surplus available for transfer to reserves 3,937 4,354 4,344
Transfers (to) from reserves for future funding purposes:
Benefited Area reserves (881) (914) (933)
Water reserve (919) (1,152) (1,118)
Sewerage reserve (1,058) (1,129) (1,100)
Waste reserve (562) (642) (662)
Disaster reserve (5) (5) (5)
Insurance reserve (100) (100) (100)
General reserve (363) (363) (363)
Retained surplus (deficiency) available for general funding 50 49 62
Capital Funding Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021122
$'000 $ '000 $ '000
Sources of capital funding
General revenue used for capital purposes 534 7 388
Excess capital revenue transferred from capital to retained surplus
Other capital revenue sources:
Extemal Loan monies expended 3,750
Internal Loan monies expended
Funded depreciation and amortisation 9,140 9,455 9,777
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 240 240 240
Transfers from capital reserve 2,340 4,034 1,679
Donated and contributed physical assets - - -
Constrained grants, subsidies and contributions 10,239 2,440 2,440
Constrained public contributions reserve 1,958 900 900
28,201 17,446 15,424
Application of capital funding
Non current capital assets 27,777 17,069 15,036
Principal loan redemptions :
Queensland Treasury Corporation 391 344 355
Lease Repayment 33 33 33
28,201 17,446 15,424
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Page 10 of 23
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL

Income Statement by Fund

For the year ended 30 June 2020 General

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ '000 $ '000
Revenue
Rates and utility charges 17,945 18,390 18,771
Less discounts and pensioner remissions (1,994) (2,044) (2,095)
Net rates and utility charges 15,951 16,346 16,676
Fees and charges 1,246 1,277 1,309
Operating grants and subsidies 7.216 7.360 7,508
Operating contributions
Interest revenue 290 292 294
Works for third parties 1,743 1,787 1,831
Other revenue 1,865 2,033 2,080
Total Operating Revenue 28,311 29,095 29,698
Expenditure
Employee expenses 16,495 16,907 17,330
Materials and services 4,407 4,517 4,630
Depreciation expenses 6,485 6,765 6,819
Finance and borrowing costs 185 220 216
Total Operating Expenses 27,572 28,410 28,995
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 739 685 703
Capital Income
Contributions from developers
Capital grants and subsidies 8,626 2,440 2,440
Profit/(Loss) on sale of asset (499)
Interest on constrained works
8,127 2,440 2,440

Net Result 8,866 3,125 3,143

Page 11 0of 23
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Appropriations by Fund

For the year ended 30 June 2020 General
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$'000 $'000 $'000
Retained surplus (deficiency) from prior years - -
Net result for the period from the Income Statement 8,866 3,125 3,143
8,866 3,125 3,143
Transfers (to) from capital account:
(Profit) loss on sale of capital assets 499
General revenue used for capital purposes (221) (168) (173)
Net capital account transfers 278 (168) (173)

Transfer from (to) the constrained works reserve

Transfer from (to) capital grants, subsidies and contributions (8.626) (2,440) (2,440)

Retained surplus available for transfer to reserves 518 517 530
Transfers (to) from Insurance reserve: (100) (100) (100)
Transfers (to) from Disaster reserve: (5) (5) (5)
Transfers (to) from reserves for replenishment of reserves: (363) (363) (363)
Retained surplus (deficiency) available for general funding 50 49 62

Capital Funding Statement by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ ‘000 $ ‘000 $'000
Sources of capital funding
General revenue used for capital purposes 221 168 173
Other capital revenue sources:
External Loan monies expended 3,750
Internal Loan monies expended
Funded depreciation and amortisation 5,464 6,257 6,539
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 240 240 240
Transfers from capital reserve 32
Constrained grants, subsidies and contributions 8,626 2,440 2,440
Constrained public contributions reserve 835 900 900
19,168 10,005 10,292
Application of capital funding
Non current capital assets 18,947 9,837 10,119
Principal loan redemptions :
Queensland Treasury Corporation 188 135 140
Lease repayment 33 33 33
19,168 10,005 10,292

Page 12 of 23
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL

Income Statement by Fund

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Waste

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$'000 $ '000 $'000

Revenue
Rates and utility charges 3,807 3,902 4,000
Less discounts and pensioner remissions
Net rates and utility charges 3,807 3,902 4,000
Fees and charges
Operating grants and subsidies
Operating contributions
Interest revenue 50 50 50
Works for third parties
Other revenue 1,670 1,712 1,755
Total Operating Revenue 5,527 5,664 5,804
Expenditure
Employee expenses 394 404 414
Materials and services 4,366 4,475 4,587
Depreciation expenses 205 143 141
Finance and borrowing costs
Total Operating Expenses 4,965 5,022 5,142
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 562 642 662
Capital Income
Contributions from developers
Capital grants and subsidies 190
Profit/(Loss) on sale of asset
Interest on constrained works
Net Result 752 642 662

Page 13 of 23
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Appropriations by Fund

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Waste
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ '000 $ '000
Retained surplus (deficiency) from prior years
Net result for the period from the Income Statement 752 642 662
752 642 662
Transfers (to) from capital account:
General revenue used for capital purposes
Transfer from (to) the constrained works reserve
Transfer from (to) capital grants, subsidies and contributions (190)
Retained surplus available for transfer to reserves 562 642 662
Transfers (to) from reserves for future funding purposes: (562) (642) (662)
Retained surplus (deficiency) available for general funding
Capital Funding Statement by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ ‘000 $ '000
Sources of capital funding
General revenue used for capital purposes
Other capital revenue sources:
External Loan monies expended
Internal Loan monies expended
Funded depreciation and amortisation
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers from capital reserve 465 105 108
Constrained grants, subsidies and contributions
Constrained public contributions reserve
465 105 108
Application of capital funding
Non current capital assets 465 105 108
Principal loan redemptions :
Queensland Treasury Corporation
465 105 108
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Income Statement by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020 Sewerage
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ '000 $'000
Revenue
Rates and utility charges 4,954 5,078 5,205
Less discounts and pensioner remissions . . R
Net rates and utility charges 4,954 5,078 5,205
Fees and charges
Operating grants and subsidies
Operating contributions
Interest revenue 85 85 85
Works for third parties 3 3 3
Other revenue 45 46 47
Total Operating Revenue 5,087 5,212 5,340
Expenditure
Employee expenses 536 549 563
Materials and services 1,636 1,677 1,719
Depreciation expenses 1,482 1,519 1,616
Finance and borrowing costs 132 129 127
Total Operating Expenses 3,786 3,874 4,025
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 1,301 1,338 1,315
Capital Income
Contributions from developers
Capital grants and subsidies 463
Profit/(Loss) on sale of asset (70)
Interest on constrained works
393
Net Result 1,694 1,338 1,315
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Appropriations by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020 Sewerage
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ '000 $'000
Retained surplus (deficiency) from prior years
Net result for the period from the Income Statement 1,694 1,338 1,315
1,694 1,338 1,315
Transfers (to) from capital account:
(Profit) loss on sale of capital assets 70
General revenue used for capital purposes (243) (209) (215)
Net capital account transfers (173) {209) (215)
Transfer from (to) the constrained works reserve
Transfer from (to) capital grants, subsidies and contributions (463)
Retained surplus available for transfer to reserves 1,058 1,129 1,100
Transfers (to) from reserves for future funding purposes: (1,058) (1,129) (1,100)
Retained surplus (deficiency) available for general funding B - -
Capital Funding Statement by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$'000 $'000 $'000
Sources of capital funding
General revenue used for capital purposes 243 209 215
Other capital revenue sources:
External Loan monies expended
Internal Loan monies expended
Funded depreciation and amortisation 1,996 1,698 1,798
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers from capital reserve 1,808 1,379 1,081
Constrained grants, subsidies and contributions 463 - -
Constrained public contributions reserve 463
4,973 3,286 3,094
Application of capital funding
Non current capital assets 4,770 3,077 2,879
Principal loan redemptions :
Queensland Treasury Corporation 203 209 215
4,973 3,286 3,094
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL

Income Statement by Fund

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Water

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ '000 $ '000
Revenue
Rates and utility charges 5,887 6,034 6,185
Less discounts and pensioner remissions
Net rates and utility charges 5,887 6,034 6,185
Fees and charges
Operating grants and subsidies
Operating contributions
Interest revenue 25 25 25
Works for third parties 45 46 47
Other revenue 32 33 34
Total Operating Revenue 5,989 6,138 6,291
Expenditure
Employee expenses 815 835 856
Materials and services 2,713 2,781 2,850
Depreciation expenses 1,472 1,370 1,466
Finance and borrowing costs
Total Operating Expenses 5,000 4,986 5,173
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 989 1,152 1,118
Capital Income
Contributions from developers
Capital grants and subsidies 1,150
Profit/(Loss) on sale of asset (261)
Interest on constrained works
889

Net Result 1,878 1,152 1,118
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL

Statement of Appropriations by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Retained surplus (deficiency) from prior years

Net result for the period from the Income Statement

Transfers (to) from capital account:
(Profit) loss on sale of capital assets
General revenue used for capital purposes

Net capital account transfers

Transfer from (to) the constrained works reserve
Transfer from (to) capital grants, subsidies and contributions

Retained surplus available for transfer to reserves

Transfers (to) from reserves for future funding purposes:

Retained surplus (deficiency) available for general funding

Capital Funding Statement by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Sources of capital funding

General revenue used for capital purposes

Other capital revenue sources:
External Loan monies expended
Internal Loan monies expended
Funded depreciation and amortisation
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers from capital reserve
Constrained grants, subsidies and contributions

Constrained public contributions reserve

Application of capital funding
Non current capital assets
Principal loan redemptions :

Queensland Treasury Corporation

Water
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ '000 $ '000 $ '000
1,878 1,152 1,118
1,878 1,152 1,118
261
(70)
191
(1,150)
919 1,152 1,118
(919) (1,152) (1,118)
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$'000 $'000 $'000
70
1,680 1,500 1,440
35 490 490
1,150
660
3,595 1,990 1,930
3,595 1,990 1,930
3,595 1,990 1,930
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL

Income Statement by Fund

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Benefited Area

Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ $ $

Revenue
Rates and utility charges 335 343 352
Less discounts and pensioner remissions
Net rates and utility charges 335 343 352
Fees and charges
Operating grants and subsidies
Operating contributions 920 938 957
Interest revenue 50 50 50
Works for third parties
Other revenue 22 23 23
Total Operating Revenue 1,327 1,354 1,382
Expenditure
Employee expenses 89 91 94
Materials and services 271 278 285
Depreciation expenses 86 71 71
Finance and borrowing costs
Total Operating Expenses 446 440 449
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 881 914 933
Capital Income
Contributions from developers
Capital grants and subsidies
Profit/(Loss) on sale of asset
Interest on constrained works
Net Result 881 914 933
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
Statement of Appropriations by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Retained surplus (deficiency) from prior years

Net result for the period from the income Statement

Transfers (to) from capital account:
General revenue used for capital purposes

Net capital account transfers

Transfer from (to) the constrained works reserve
Transfer from (to) capital grants, subsidies and contributions

Retained surplus available for transfer to reserves

Transfers (to) from reserves for future funding purposes:

Retained surplus (deficiency) available for general funding

Capital Funding Statement by Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Sources of capital funding

General revenue used for capital purposes

Other capital revenue sources:
External Loan monies expended
Internal Loan monies expended
Funded depreciation and amortisation
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers from capital reserve
Constrained grants, subsidies and contributions

Constrained public contributions reserve

Application of capital funding
Non current capital assets
Principal loan redemptions :

Queensland Treasury Corporation

Benefited Area
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ $ $
881 914 933
881 914 933
881 914 933
(881) (914) (933)
Budget Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
$ $ $
2,060
2,060
2,060
2,060
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1.6 Long Term Financial Forecast
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1  2019/2020 STRIKING OF RATES AND CHARGES

1.1 DIFFERENTIAL GENERAL RATES

(a)
(i) Pursuant to section 81 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the categories
into which rateable land is categorised and the description of those categories, is
as per Columns 1 and 2 of the table that follows; and

(ii) Pursuant to section 94 of the Local Government Act 2009 and section 80 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012, the differential general rate to be made and
levied for each differential general rate category is as per Column 3 of the table
that follows; and

(iii) Pursuant to section 77 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the minimum
general rate to be made and levied for each differential general rate category is as
per Column 4 of the table that follows.

Column1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Differential Column4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) General Rate Minimum
(Regulation, (Act, section 94; General Rate
section 81) Regulation, section 80) (Regulation,
Rate in Dollar section 77)
Al - All land having a rateable 0.01687 $1,056.00
Residential value of between S0 and
$72,000 that is used for single
(Urban) - SO to . . .
unit residential purposes or
$72,000

any other rateable land not
otherwise categorised
including:

* properties where the
Building Unit Plan, Group Title
Plan or Community Title
Scheme is lodged under the
Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area less than or
equal to 1,000m2; and

« all residential land inside of
the urban nodes.

Page 7 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 37



Special Council Meeting Attachments

19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

Column1 -
Category
(Regulation,
section 81)

Column 2 - Description
(Regulation, section 81)

Column 3 - Differential
General Rate
(Act, section 94;
Regulation, section 80)

Rate in Dollar

Column 4 -
Minimum
General Rate
(Regulation,
section 77)

A2 -
Residential
(Urban) -
$72,001 to
$130,000

A3 -
Residential
(Urban) -
$130,001 to
$203,000

All land having a rateable
value of between $72,001 and
$130,000 that is used for
single unit residential
purposes or any other
rateable land not otherwise
categorised including:

* properties where the
Building Unit Plan, Group Title
Plan or Community Title
Scheme is lodged under the
Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area less than or
equal to 1,000m2; and

* all residential land inside of
the urban nodes.

All land having a rateable
value of between $130,001
and $203,000 that is used for
single unit residential
purposes or any other
rateable land not otherwise
categorised including:

* properties where the
Building Unit Plan, Group Title
Plan or Community Title
Scheme is lodged under the
Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area less than or
equal to 1,000m2; and

* all residential land inside of
the urban nodes.

0.01052

0.00947

$1,216.00

$1,369.00
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Column1 -
Category
(Regulation,
section 81)

Column 2 - Description
(Regulation, section 81)

Column 3 - Differential
General Rate
(Act, section 94;
Regulation, section 80)

Rate in Dollar

Column 4 -
Minimum
General Rate
(Regulation,
section 77)

A4 -
Residential
(Urban) =
Greater than
$203,000

B1 - Multi
Unit

All land having a rateable
value of more than $203,000
thatis used for single unit
residential purposes or any
other rateable land not
otherwise categorised
including:

* properties where the
Building Unit Plan, Group Title
Plan or Community Title
Scheme is lodged under the
Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area less than or
equal to 1,000m2; and

* all residential land inside of
the urban nodes.

All land used for multi-unit
dwellings and flats excluding
properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is
lodged under the Body
Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997.

0.00811

0.01191

$1,924.00

$1,056.00

C1- Non-
Residential

All other non-residential land
excluding land categorised
under categories D1, E1, E2,
E3, E4, H1, J1 and K1 including
properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is
lodged under the Body
Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997 that
operate as a commercial
business e.g.: unit of shops,
holiday villas etc

0.01243

$1,185.00
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Lease/Claims

and claims are used for
prospecting, developing or use
as amine as defined in the
Mineral Resources Act 1989,
and employs over 50
employees.

Column 1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Differential Column4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) General Rate Minimum
(Regulation, (Act, section 94; General Rate
section 81) Regulation, section 80) (Regulation,
Rate in Dollar section 77)
D1 - Major All land used for a drive-in 0.01858 $30,480.00
Drive-In Shop shop or shopping centre with
or Shopping arateable valuation greater
Centre than or equal to $1,000,000.
E1 - Mining All land where mining leases 0.07096 $515.00
Lease/Claims and claims are used for
prospecting, developing or use
as a mine as defined in the
Mineral Resources Act 1989,
and where no operators or
employees reside on the
property.
E2 - Mining All land where mining leases 0.09250 $1,056.00
Lease/Claims and claims are used for
prospecting, developing or use
as amine as defined in the
Mineral Resources Act 1989,
and where one or more of the
operators or employees reside
on the property.
E3 - Mining All land where mining leases 0.44342 $26,780.00
Lease/Claims and claims are used for
prospecting, developing or use
as a mine as defined in the
Mineral Resources Act 1989,
and employs between 11 - 50
employees.
E4 — Mining All land where mining leases 0.88683 $53,560.00
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Column 1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column 4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum General
(Regulation, General Rate Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section section 77)
80)
Rate in Dollar
F1 - Primary All land area which is 0.00910 $1,716.00
Production predominately used for
primary production purposes
other than those properties
defined as Category G1.
G1 - Large All land thatis used for the 0.00993 $1,716.00
Grazing primary purpose of raising
Properties livestock and land area
exceeds 5,000 hectares.
H1 - Specialty | All land used for the 0.01638 $27,017.00
Industries slaughtering and processing of
poultry
11 - Extractive | All land used or capable of 0.00827 $530.00
Industry being used for extractive
(Quarry) - industry purposes, where the
] v quantity of material capable of
maximum of being extracted &/or screened
5,000 tonnes | js up to a maximum of 5,000
per annum tonnes per annum,
12 — Extractive | All land used or capable of 0.00162 $581.00
Industry being used for extractive
(Quarry) - industry purposes, where the
between 5,001 qu‘antlty of material capable of
4100.000 being extracted &/or screened
an ! is between 5,001 tonnes and
tonnes per 100,000 tonnes per annum.
annum
(inclusive)
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Column1- Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum General
(Regulation, General Rate Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section section 77)
80)
Rate in Dollar
13 - Extractive | All land used or capable of 0.00061 $635.00
Industry being used for extractive
(Quarry) - industry purposes, where the
greater than quantity of material capable of
100,000 being extracted &/or screened
! is greater than 100,000 tonnes
tonnes per per annum.
annum
J1 - Heavy Land used for a sugar mill 0.35019 $101,556.00
Industry -
Sugar Mill
K1 - Heavy Land used for a large 0.23346 $71,206.00
Industry - commercial waste facility.
Waste Facility
M1 - All residential land having a 0.01322 $1,056.00
Residential rateable value of between S0
(Rural) - $0 to and $119,000 outside of the
urban nodes, or all land where
$119,000 the Building Unit Plan or Group
Titles Plan is lodged under the
Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area exceeding
1,000m2, other than land that
is categorised as Category F1
(Primary Production).
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Column1 -
Category
(Regulation,
section 81)

Column 2 - Description
(Regulation, section 81)

Column 3 -
Differential
General Rate
(Act, section 94;
Regulation, section
80)

Rate in Dollar

Column4 -

Minimum General

Rate
(Regulation,
section 77)

M2 -
Residential
(Rural) -
$119,001 to
$250,000

All residential land having a
rateable value of between
$119,001 and $250,000
outside of the urban nodes, or
all land where the Building
Unit Plan or Group Titles Plan
is lodged under the Body
Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997 with
an area exceeding 1,000m2,
other than land thatis
categorised as Category F1
(Primary Production).

0.00944

$1,575.00

M3 -
Residential
(Rural) -
greater than
$250,000

All residential land having a
rateable value greater than
$250,000 outside of the urban
nodes, or all land where the
Building Unit Plan or Group
Titles Plan is lodged under the
Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area exceeding
1,000m2, other than land that
is categorised as Category F1
(Primary Production).

0.00938

$2,361.00

N1 - Unused
land

All vacant land in the localities
of Watsonville, Irvinebank, Mt
Albion, Thornborough,
Stannary Hills, Chillagoe,
Dimbulah and Mungana that is
not used for any purpose and
is not included in any other
category.

1.01000

Nil

S —
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Column1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum General
(Regulation, General Rate Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section section 77)
80)
Rate in Dollar
S1-— Approved | All land valued in accordance 0.01296 Nil
subdividers with the provisions of Section
49 of the Land Valuation Act
2010 and Section 77 (3) of the
Local Government Regulation
2012.
(b) Council delegates to the Chief Executive Officer the power, pursuant to sections 81(4)

and 81(5) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, to identify the rating category to
which each parcel of rateable land belongs.
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1.2 SEWERAGE UTILITY CHARGES

The following sewerage charges will be levied on properties within the Mareeba Shire Council
local government area as shown on Maps 23 to 25 - Volume 3 of the MSC Budget. These maps
are titled "Sewerage Area - Kuranda", "Sewerage Area - Mareeba", "Sewerage Area - Myola".

In circumstances where dwellings are built over the boundary line of two or more parcels and
the ratepayer proves that this is the case, Council shall levy one sewerage access charge as if it
were one parcel. In the situation that Council is currently charging one access charge for two
parcels with a dwelling built over the boundary line, there will be no need for the ratepayer to
provide further proof.

1.2.1 Kuranda/Myola Sewerage

(a) The Kuranda/Myola Sewered Area shall be defined as that area which is indicated on the
map titled "Sewerage Area - Kuranda" in Map 23 and "Sewerage Area - Myola" in Map 25
- Volume 3 of the MSC Budget.

(b) The Kuranda/Myola Sewerage Charge shall be levied on all properties located within the
defined area titled "Sewerage Area - Kuranda" and "Sewerage Area - Myola" and shall be
levied on a unit basis as determined by Council and set out on Schedule 2 (Page 62) of this
document.

(c) The Kuranda/Myola Sewerage Charge shall be levied at $734.00 per unit for vacant lots,
$900.00 per unit for each residential dwelling or unit/flat and $300.00 per unit for all non-
residential units.

(d) For those properties that share both residential and non-residential structures, the
premises shall be considered mixed use premises attracting both unit and charge per unit
factors for each type of structure.

1.2.2 Mareeba Sewerage

(a) The Mareeba Sewered Area shall be defined as that area which is indicated on the map
titled "Sewerage Area - Mareeba" in Map 24 - Volume 3 of the MSC Budget.

(b) The Mareeba Sewerage Charge shall be levied on all properties located within the defined
area titled "Sewerage Area - Mareeba" on a unit basis as determined by Council and set
out on Schedule 2 (Page 62) of this document.

(c) The Mareeba Sewerage Charge shall be levied at $734.00 per unit for each vacant lot,
$900.00 per unit for each residential dwelling or unit/flat and $900.00 per pedestal/urinal
for each non-residential unit.

(d) For those properties that share both residential and non-residential structures, the
premises shall be considered mixed use premises attracting both unit and charge per unit
factors for each type of structure.

In respect of improvements erected during the year, sewerage charges shall be levied
proportionally for the unexpired part of the year from the date Council determines the
improvement is ready for occupation.

S —
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WASTE MANAGEMENT UTILITY CHARGES

Council will levy utility charges as follows for: -

(a) Wheelie Bin - supplying waste collection services to premises within the waste
area for the financial year; and

(b) Waste Management Charge - operating and managing refuse transfer stations
and landfills within the Shire.

Wheelie Bin

Waste collection utility charges for land or structures where Council deems that a service will be
supplied for each residence, flat or strata title unit, will be charged $294.00 per wheelie bin
service whether or not a service is rendered.

The service will be supplied to premises in the waste area which is defined as an area in which
Council or Council's contractors provide a solid waste collection service as defined in Maps 11
to 22 - Volume 3 of the MSC Budget. Waste services for non-residential properties within
Mareeba Shire Council are not provided.

In respect of improvements erected during the year, waste collection utility charges shall be
levied proportionally for the unexpired part of the year from the date council determines the
improvement is ready for occupation. For users, the charge will be for a weekly collection of one
(1) wheelie bin. The proceeds from the charge will fund the operation of the collection service,
transport management and costs of disposal of the refuse collected.

Waste Management Charge

A utility charge for refuse transfer stations and landfills, to be known as the “Waste
Management Charge” will be levied on all assessable properties within the boundaries of the
Waste Management Charge Area as defined in Map 36 - Volume 3 of the MSC Budget excluding
Categories G and E other than the below listed properties within either Categories G and/or E
that have reasonable access to the waste facilities funded by this utility charge:

+ Lot 1 ML4798
+ Lot 1ML4867
+ Lot 1 ML4919
+ Lot 14 C15783

The purpose of this charge is to provide a contribution to the operation and management of
refuse transfer stations and landfills in the Shire and includes the costs of pre-cyclone clean ups
and waste education. Council is of the opinion that all assessable properties that fall within the
abovementioned definition and declared area will benefit from the provision of these solid
waste facilities and services.

The budgeted cost of managing and operating the refuse transfer stations and landfills is not
fully funded by this utility charge. Further funding will be provided by other charges and revenue
generated at the refuse transfer stations and landfills.

The Waste Management Charge will be $162.00 per assessable property (as described above).
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1.4 WATER UTILITY CHARGES

Council will levy utility charges for supplying water service. The water charges will be charged
on a two-part tariff system comprising of:

(a) Fixed Access Charge - to cover Council's fixed costs in supplying water to the
Water Areas as marked on the water supply maps for the relevant towns in
Schedule 1 (Page 59) of this document and in Maps 37 to 42 - Volume 3 of the
MSC Budget (i.e. the costs which do not vary with the amount of water
reticulated including interest and redemption charges incurred by Council); and

(b) Water Usage Charge - for each kilolitre of water consumed, to cover Council's
variable costs of operating, maintaining and managing the water supply system.

The usage charge is levied on a two-tiered basis for the Mareeba, Kuranda, Chillagoe, Dimbulah
and Mt Molloy water areas with a lower charge (First Tier Charge) for water consumption up to
the First Tier Limit and a higher usage charge (Second Tier Charge) for consumption above the
First Tier Limit.

The Fixed Access Charge is also applied to each separate parcel of vacant land within the water
areas that is not connected to the Council's reticulated water supply system. Where a property
is levied Multiple Fixed Access Charges, the first tier limit shall increase proportionately.

For the purposes of levying the Fixed Access Charge, each property will be assessed on the basis
of whether itis used for residential, non-residential or industrial purposes. Large commercial or
industrial users are defined as those properties specifically identified as being high water
consumers.

For those properties that share both residential and non-residential structures, the premises
shall be considered mixed use premises attracting residential, non-residential or non-standard
access charges for each type of structure.

In circumstances where dwellings are built over the boundary line of two or more parcels and
the ratepayer proves that this is the case, Council shall levy one water access charge asif it were
one parcel. In the situation that Council is currently charging one access charge for two parcels
with a dwelling built over the boundary line, there will be no need for the ratepayer to provide
further proof.

Council believes that it is equitable for all users and potential users to contribute to the costs of
the water supply system by way of an access charge and consumption charge. The consumption
charge for water consumed conforms to the "user pays" principle.

Inrespect of improvements erected during the year, water charges shall be levied proportionally
for the unexpired part of the year from the date council determines the improvement is ready
for occupation. The tiered water usage charging system provides an incentive for water
conservation.
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L _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Dispute Resolution

Council's Water Leak Management Policy Appendix B (Page 71) of this document sets out the
processes for resolving any conflict in relation to inaccurately registering and non-functioning
meters.

The Two-Tier Tariff Water Charges as shown on Schedule 1, (Page 61) of this document for
Mareeba, Kuranda, Chillagoe, Dimbulah and Mt Molloy water areas will be levied during the
2019/2020 financial year on properties located in the water areas within the Shire shown on the
maps of the relevant water supply areas in Maps 37 to 42 - Volume 3 of the MSC budget.
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1.5 TRADE WASTE UTILITY CHARGES

The following trade waste charges are made and levied on all commercial and industrial
properties discharging trade waste into Council's wastewater system as shown on Maps 23 to
25 - Volume 3 of the MSC Budget and in accordance with the Water Supply (Safety and
Reliability) Act 2008.

An annual fixed charge, which is determined by the applicable category, will be applied to each
to property as set out in the table below. The charge is to recover costs associated with the
management of the trade waste service including:

(a) conducting site inspections, investigations and compliance checks;
(b) ensuring appropriate pre-treatment devices are installed and maintained; and
(c) providing advice and education to trade waste generators and property owners

A technical and commercial risk assessment of trade waste impacts on Council's sewerage
infrastructure provides the basis for categorising commercial trade waste customers and
applying the relevant trade waste charges. In accordance with Council’s Trade Waste Policy and
Trade Waste Plan, Council will segregate trade waste customers into a category which best
reflects their demand on the sewerage infrastructure, consequently improving the equitability
of trade waste charges for the service. The categorisation and compliance requirements for each
customer are consistently applied to:

(a) Clearly identify activities that are commercial in nature (Category 1 and 2) to delineate
customers whose activities require additional management through an individual
contract for Category 3, 4, or industrial customers; and

(b) Differentiate customers and target Council's resources towards the higher risk
customers where the potential benefits to the customer and Council are the greatest.

Approved trade waste connections are allocated to the following five (5) categories in
accordance with Councils Trade Waste Policy and Trade Waste Plan;

Trade Waste Category Description Annual Fixed

Charge
Category 1 Low Risk $0.00
Category 2 Low - Medium Risk $200.00
Category 3 Medium Risk $400.00
Category 4 High Risk $600.00
Industry * Significant Risk $10,000.00

*In situations where Industry have Council approval to discharge to the sewer the trade waste
charge as above will apply.

In relation to the Industry annual fixed base charge, consideration will be given for hardship
concessions on a case by case basis.

For new connections, charges will be applicable on a pro rata basis for the first billing period.
Council may issue supplementary rates notices for trade waste charges at any point during a
financial year.
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1.6 SPECIAL RATES AND CHARGES

1.6.1 Special Charge - Irvinebank Reservoir Water Supply Benefited Area

Council adopts the following overall plan for the Irvinebank Reservoir Water Supply Benefited
Area as defined on Map 2 - Volume 3 of the MSC budget titled "Irvinebank Water Benefited
Area".

Overall Plan for the Irvinebank Reservoir Water Supply Benefited Area Special Charge

The overall plan for the Irvinebank Reservoir Water Supply Benefited Area Special Charge is as
follows: -

1. The service, facility or activity funded by the special charge is the maintenance and
operation of water supply equipment/infrastructure that delivers water from the Ibis
Dam to the Irvinebank town reservoirs.

2. The rateable land to which the special charge is applied is as defined on Map 2 -
Volume 3 of the MSC Budget titled "Irvinebank Water Benefited Area".

Council considers that the rateable land described above derives a special benefit from
the service, facility and activity funded by the special charge.

3. The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $52,005.00.

4, The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

Council will levy the Irvinebank Reservoir Water Supply Benefited Area Special Charge in the
amount of $400.00 per property.
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1.6.2 Special Charge - Irvinebank Township Water Supply Benefited Area

Council adopts the following overall plan for the Irvinebank Township Water Supply Benefited
Area as defined on Map 2 - Volume 3 of MSC budget titled "Irvinebank Water Benefited Area".

Overall Plan for the Irvinebank Township Water Supply Benefited Area Special Charge

The overall plan for the Irvinebank Township Water Supply Benefited Area Special Charge is as
follows: -

1. The service, facility or activity funded by the special charge is the maintenance and
operation of water supply equipment/infrastructure that delivers water from the
Irvinebank town reservoirs to the properties connected to Irvinebank reticulated
water supply system.

2. The rateable land to which the special charge is applied is as defined on Map 2 -
Volume 3 of the MSC Budget titled "Irvinebank Water Benefited Area".

Council considers that the rateable land described above derives a special benefit from
the service, facility and activity funded by the special charge.

3. The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $3,000.00.

4. The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

Council will levy the Irvinebank Township Water Supply Benefited Area Special Charge in the
amount of $50.00 per property.
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1.6.3 Special Rate - Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Commercial Properties

Council adopts the following overall plan for the Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) -
Commercial Properties.

Overall Plan for Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Commercial Properties Special
Rate

The overall plan for the Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) Commercial Properties
Special Rate is as follows: -

1. The service, facility or activity funded by the special rate is the carrying out of tourism
industry strategies and promotion strategies and programmes.

2. The rateable land to which the special charge is applied is as follows: -

Kuranda Benefited Area 1

« All commercial properties within the central business district in Kuranda as
well as tourism operations in surrounding areas as defined on Map 4 “Kuranda
Benefited Area 1” of Volume 3 of the MSC Budget.

Kuranda Benefited Area 3

« Limited tourism operations that are listed below and as defined on Map 6
"Kuranda Benefited Area 3" of Volume 3 of MSC Budget;

+ Lot 15P 288902 & Lot2 RP 711194
« Lot 44 RP 851441

Council considers that the rateable land described above derives a special benefit from the
service, facility and activity funded by the special rate at differential levels reflecting the
degree to which the land or its occupier is considered to derive benefit,

3. The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $246,900.00.

4. The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

Council will levy the Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Commercial Properties
Special Rate as follows:

Category $ Rate in dollar
Kuranda Benefited Area 1 0.013190
Kuranda Benefited Area 3 - Limited Tourism operations 0.001097
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Council adopts the following overall plan for the Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) -
Small Accommodation Operators Special Charge.

Overall Plan for Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Small Accommodation
Operators Special Charge

The overall plan for the Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Small Accommodation
Operators Special Charge is as follows: -

1. The service, facility or activity funded by the special rate is the carrying out of tourism
industry strategies and promotion strategies and programmes.

2. The rateable land to which the special charge is applied is as follows: -

Small accommodation operators that are listed below and as defined on Map 5
"Kuranda Benefited Area 2" of Volume 3 of the MSC Budget;

Lot 1 BUP 71369

Lot 11 RP 733931

Lot 7 RP 724900

Lot 2 BUP 71369

Lot 4 SP 160669

Lot 2 RP 713002

Lot 20 RP 732901

Lot 43 RP 747670

Lot 22 RP 728595

Lot S RP 725499

Lot 81 RP 746616

Lot 1 RP 744874

Lot 1 RP 725528

Lot 78 RP 742967

Lot 79 RP 746616

Lot 8 RP 731084

Lot 12 RP 732900

Lot 18 RP 892273

Lot 4 SP 164245

Lot 15 SP 202311

Lot 811 SP 108022

Small accommodation operators are classed as premises used or intended to be used to
provide overnight or short-term (three months or less) visitor accommodation for a fee and;

(a) can be classed as a room, group of rooms, entire dwelling (such as house or cabin);
and/or

(b) be self-contained; and

(c) commercially advertised (including via digital platforms such as Airbnb and
Booking.com).

Council considers that the rateable land described above derives a special benefit from the
service, facility and activity funded by the special charge at differential levels reflecting the
degree to which the land or its occupier is considered to derive benefit.

3. The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $246,900.00.

4. The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

Council will levy the Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Small Accommodation
Operators Special Charge as follows:
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Category $ Charge
Kuranda Benefited Area 2 - Small accommodation operators

One (1) self-contained unit/independent bedroom 196.00
Two (2) self-contained units/independent bedrooms 392.00
Three (3) self-contained units/independent bedrooms 588.00
Four (4) or more self-contained units/independent bedrooms 784.00
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1.6.5 Special Rate - Mareeba Benefited Area

Council adopts the following overall plan for the Mareeba Benefited Area.

Overall Plan for the Mareeba Benefited Area Special Rate

The overall plan for the Mareeba Benefited Area Special Rate is as follows: -

1.

The service, facility or activity funded by the special rate is the undertaking of one or
more of the following, but not limited to;

+ footpath construction and repair

« roads construction and repair

« drainage construction and repair

« adequate car parking

« beautification works

+« promotional activities

« installation of street furniture and street decorations
« economic and tourism development activities.

The rateable land to which the special charge is applied is all commercial land within
the Mareeba locality that are categorised (pursuant to Council's differential general
rating categories) as categories C, D or H, excluding vacant land, defined on Map 7 -
Volume 3 of the MSC Budget titled "Mareeba Benefited Area 1 & 2 and Map 8 - Volume
3 of the MSC Budget titled "Mareeba Benefited Area 3 ".

Council considers that the rateable land described above derives a special benefit from
the service, facility and activity funded by the special rate to different extents based
on their locality.

The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $110,900.00.

The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

Council will levy the Mareeba Benefited Area Special Rate as follows:

Category Description $ Rate

Mareeba Benefited Area 1 | Areas coloured purple $0.00223 per dollar of valuation
on the Benefited Area
Map 7 - Volume 3.

Mareeba Benefited Area 2 | Areas coloured blue on $0.00154 per dollar of valuation
the Benefited Area Map
7 - Volume 3.

Mareeba Benefited Area 3 | Areas coloured orange $0.00062 per dollar of valuation
on the Benefited Area
Map 8 - Volume 3.
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1.6.6 Special Charge - Extractive Industry Road Contribution

Council

Overall

adopts the following overall plan for the Extractive Industry Road Contribution.

Plan for Extractive Industry Road Contribution Special Charge

The overall plan for the Extractive Industry Road Contribution Special Charge is as follows: -

1.

Council

The service, facility or activity funded by the special rate is the undertaking of road
construction and repair, and drainage construction and repair to roads impacted by
extractive industry operations within the Shire.

The rateable land to which the special charge is applied is all extractive industry
operations within the Shire that are categorised (pursuant to Council’s differential
general rating categories) as categories 11, 12, or I3.

Council considers that the rateable land to be levied with the special charge described
above is used in a way that specifically contributes to the need for the service, facility
and activity funded by this special charge at differential levels, reflecting the degree
to which the land or its occupier is considered to contribute to that need.

The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $850,000.00

The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

will levy the Extractive Industry Road Contribution Special Charge as follows: -

Category

Description $ Charge

ERC1

material being extracted &/or screened is up to a maximum of 5,000 tonnes
per annum,

All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $1,340.00

ERC2

material being extracted &/or screened is between 5,001 tonnes and 20,000
tonnes per annum,

All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $4,018.00

ERC3

material being extracted &/or screened is between 20,001 tonnes and
40,000 tonnes per annum.

All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $8,034.00

ERC4

material being extracted &/or screened is between 40,001 tonnes and
60,000 tonnes per annum.

All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of [ ¢13 390.00

ERCS

material extracted &/or screened is between 60,001 tonnes and 100,000
tonnes per annum.,

All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $21,424.00

ERCE

material being extracted &/or screened is greater than 100,000 tonnes per
annum,

All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of [ ¢3¢ 780.00
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1.6.7 Special Charge - Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive

Council adopts the following annual implementation plan for the Hickory Road and Rosewood
Drive Special Charge.

Annual Implementation Plan for Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive Special Charge

The overall plan for the Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive Special Charge was adopted at
Council's 2009/2010 budget meeting and involved Council committing to sealing the unsealed
section of Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive as an adjunct to the gravel re-sheet project
funded in the 2009/2010 Capital Works Programme. The works have been completed at a cost
to Council of $30,000.00. These costs are to be recovered from all rateable properties fronting
Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive over a period of ten (10) years commencing on 1 July 2010.

Accordingly, the annual implementation plan for 2019/2020 for the Hickory Road and
Rosewood Drive Special Charge is the ongoing repayment to Council of the cost of sealing the
unsealed section of Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive.

Council will levy the Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive Special Charge in the amount of
$240.00 on all rateable properties fronting Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive defined on the
map titled "Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive Special Charge" in Map 10 - Volume 3 of the
MSC budget.
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1.6.8 Special Charge - Kuranda and District Aquatic Centre

Council adopts the following annual implementation plan for the Kuranda and District Aquatic
Centre Special Charge.

Annual Implementation Plan for the Kuranda and District Aquatic Centre Special Charge

The overall plan for the Kuranda and District Aquatic Centre Special Charge was adopted at
Council's 2006/2007 budget meeting and involved Council constructing the Kuranda Aquatic
Centre in the Kuranda District. The final cost of the complex was $1,828,942.00.

State Government committed $592,500.00 to the project and Council committed
$1,236,442.00 which included $453,842.00 from differential general rates.

Council is of the opinion that ratepayers in the Kuranda, Russett Park, Speewah and Koah area
as marked on Map 3 titled "Kuranda and District Aquatic Centre Benefited Area" benefit from
this complex and should contribute towards the $782,600.00 loan bearing interest at the rate
of 6.5% over a 15-year period. This loan will be funded by a special rate on each of the
properties identified on Map 3 - Volume 3 of the MSC budget.

Should further subdivision occur during the year ending 30 June 2020, those new properties
within the area shall be required to pay the special charge as outlined above.

Accordingly, the annual implementation plan for 2019/2020 for the Kuranda and District
Aquatic Centre Special Charge is the ongoing repayment to Council of part of the cost of
constructing the Kuranda and District Aquatic Centre (including the payment of principal and
interest loan repayments).

Council will levy the Kuranda and District Aquatic Centre Special Charge in the amount of
$36.00 per property, on all the properties in the area defined on the map titled "Kuranda &
District Aquatic Centre Benefited Area” in Map 3 - Volume 3 of the MSC budget.
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1.6.9 Special Charge - Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance

Council adopts the following overall plan for the Volunteer Brigade Equipment and
Maintenance Special Charge.

Overall Plan for Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Special Charge

The overall plan for the Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Special Charge is as
follows: -

1. The service, facility or activity funded by the special charge is the funding of the
purchase and maintenance of equipment by the respective volunteer brigades to
allow them to carry out their voluntary services for the benefit of the rateable land the
subject of the special charge.

2. Therateable land to which the special charge is applied is each parcel of rateable land
identified on the maps for the relevant Volunteer Brigade Services Special Charge Area
in Map 43 - Volume 3 of the MSC Budget.

Council considers that the rateable land described above derives a special benefit from
the service, facility and activity funded by the special charge at differential levels
reflecting the degree to which the land or its occupier is considered to derive benefit.

3. The estimated cost of carrying out the overall plan is $74,840.00.

4, The estimated time for carrying out the overall plan is one year, concluding on 30 June
2020.

Council will levy a special charge on all properties within the Volunteer Brigade Services Special
Charge Area as per the following table: -

Volunteer Brigade Area S Charge per Property
Davies Creek 30.00
Hodzic 40.00
Irvinebank 20.00
Julatten 20.00
Koah 20.00
Kuranda/Myola 40.00
Mount Molloy 20.00
Mutchilba 50.00
Paddy's Green 50.00
Speewah 20.00
Springmount Primary Producers 40.00
Walsh River 50.00
Watsonville/Bakerville 40.00
Wolfram Road 50.00
Walkamin 30.00
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1.6.10 Special Rate - Russett Park Bridge Access Area

Council adopts the following annual implementation plan for the Russett Park Bridge Access
Special Rate.

Annual Implementation Plan for the Russett Park Bridge Access Area Special Rate

The overall plan for the Russett Park Bridge Access Special Charge Special Rate was adopted at
Council's 2004/2005 budget meeting and involved Council constructing a high-level bridge for
better accessibility to the Russett Park area as shown on the map titled Russett Park Bridge
Access Area. Council funded the construction cost by way of loan. The construction of the
bridge has been completed and Council is of the opinion that ratepayers in the Russett Park
area who benefit from this bridge should contribute towards the equivalent of a $200,000.00
loan bearing interest at the rate of 6.5% over a 20-year period.

Accordingly, the annual implementation plan for the Russett Park Bridge Access Special Rate
for 2019/2020 is the ongoing repayment to Council of part of the cost of constructing the
Russett Park Bridge (including the payment by of principal and interest loan repayments).

Should further subdivision of the above-mentioned properties occur during the year ending
30 June 2020, those new properties within the defined area shall be required to pay the special
charge as outlined above.

Council will levy a special rate of $0.0016 per dollar for the properties in the area defined on
Map 9 - Volume 3 of the MSC budget titled "Russett Park Bridge Access Area”.
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1.7 SEPARATE CHARGES AND LEVIES

1.7.1 Separate Charge - Local State Emergency Services Levy (Local SES Levy)

Council will levy a separate charge, in accordance with section 94 of the Local Government Act
2009 and section 103 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, of $3.30 per property for the
2019/2020 financial year to be levied equally on all rateable properties within the Mareeba
Shire. The separate charge will be called the Local State Emergency Services Levy (abbreviated
to Local SES Levy) and will fund the general operations and maintenance of Local State
Emergency Service Groups throughout the Mareeba Shire.

1.7.2 Levy - State Government Emergency Management Levy

Council will levy the State Government Emergency Management Levy on behalf of the
Queensland State Government, in accordance with the provisions of the Fire and Emergency
Services Act 1990 and Fire and Emergency Services Regulation 2011.
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1.8 TIME AND MANNER OF PAYMENT OF RATES AND/OR CHARGES

(a)

(b)

In accordance with section 94 of the Local Government Act 2009, section 118 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 and section 115 of the Fire and Emergency Services Act 1990,
all rates, charges and fire levy shall be payable at the office of Council or at such other place
or agency as may from time to time be appointed for that purpose by Council, and shall be
levied by two half yearly instalments for the period ending 31 December 2019 and 30 June
2020; said rates, charges and levies being payable on the date shown on the rate notice as
the Rate and Discount Due Date being at least 30 days after the issue date also shown on
each rate notice; and

In accordance with section 130 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 for the year ending
30 June 2020, every person liable to pay any differential general rate, utility charge, special
rate and charge, separate charge, emergency management levy and legal costs who pays
the whole of any such differential general rate, utility charge, special rate and charge,
separate charge, emergency management levy and legal costs together with any arrears of
any such differential general rate, utility charge, special rate and charge, separate charge,
levies and legal costs (excluding any outstanding adopted infrastructure charges) on or
before the Rate and Discount Due Date shown on the Rate Notice, shall be entitled to receive
a discount of 10% of the amount of such differential general rate, provided that discount
shall not apply to utility charges, special rates and charges, separate charges, levies, legal
costs or arrears of any differential general rate utility charge, special rate and charge,
separate charge, emergency management levy and legal costs.

Page 32 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1

Page 62



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

1.9 INTEREST CHARGES

In accordance with section 133 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 -

(a) For the 12 months ending 30 June 2020, Council will charge interest on overdue rates from
the day on which they became overdue and at the rate of 9.83% (or such other rate as may
be determined pursuant to Section 133 of the Local Government Regulation 2012)
compounded on daily rests. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if overdue rates are paid within
21 days from their due date, no interest shall be charged; and

(b) For the 12 months ending 30 June 2020, Council will charge interest in accordance with (a)
above, in respect of overdue rates which are subject to an agreement with the property
owner to pay regular instalments to avoid rate recovery action.

Page 33 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 63



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

1.10 REMISSION OF RATES TO NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANISATIONS

Council will:

(a) Grant arate remission of 100% on all general rates and a charge remission of 100% on Utility
Charges (sewerage, waste collection, waste management and water access charges),
Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Special Charge and local SES Levy only, to
Council approved Type A Community Groups who own or lease a property within the
Mareeba Shire excluding vacant land, provided that they satisfy the conditions as set out on
the attached Rate Rebates and Remission Policy, Appendix C (Page76) of this document; and

(b) Grant a rate remission of 50% up to a maximum of $1,000.00 on all general rates and a
charge remission of 20% up to a maximum of $200.00 on Utility Charges (sewerage, waste
collection, waste management and water access charges), Volunteer Brigade Equipment
and Maintenance Special Charge and local SES Levy only to Council approved Type B
Community Groups who own or lease a property within the Mareeba Shire excluding vacant
land, provided that they satisfy the conditions as set out on the attached Rate Rebates and
Remission Policy Appendix C (Page76) of this document; and

(c) Grant a water consumption charge remission of 35% up to a maximum of $2,000.00 for
Group 1 Category, $1,000.00 for Group 2 Category and $500.00 for Group 3 Category if
water consumption exceeds $100.00 per annum provided that they satisfy the conditions as
set out on the attached Rate Rebates and Remission Policy Appendix C (Page76) of this
document.
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1.11

1.12

REMISSION OF RATES TO PENSIONERS

Grant a remission of 30% of all differential general rates excluding interest and other charges to
pensioners who own and reside on their property within the Mareeba Shire, provided that they
satisfy the conditions as set out on the attached Rate Rebates and Remission Policy Appendix C
(Page 76) of this document and on the attached Pension Remission Application Form, Form B
(Page 109) of this document. The maximum Council Remission allowable is $240.00 per

property.

REMISSION OF WATER USAGE AND WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE TO HOME RENAL DIALYSIS
PATIENTS

Council will grant the following remissions in accordance with the attached Water and Waste
Concession for Home Renal Dialysis Policy attached at Appendix D (page 82) of this document
to eligible residents who are required to operate a home renal dialysis machine in their principal
place of residence:

(a) aremission on water usage charges for 7.5 kilolitres of water consumed per billing period in
cases where the patient is using a low volume dialysis machine, or 96 kilolitres of water
consumed per billing period in cases where the patient is using a conventional high-volume
dialysis machine; and

(b) aremission of the cost of providing one additional wheelie bin waste collection service for
the excess waste generated by patients undergoing home renal dialysis treatment.
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2 2019/2020 REVENUE STATEMENT

2.1 INTRODUCTION

This statement outlines and explains the revenue raising measures adopted by the Mareeba
Shire Council in the preparation of its Budget for the 2019/2020 financial year.

The revenue statement applies to all revenue raising activities of the Council. This statement has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Sections 172 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012. The revenue statement forms part of the Budget and must be adopted by the
Council at its Budget Meeting on 19 June 2019.

2.2 LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

Section 104 of the Local Government Act 2009 requires that a local government must comply
with the requirements prescribed under a regulation regarding the financial management
documents which includes an annual budget and a revenue statement.

Section 169 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires that a local government must
prepare a revenue statement each financial year. Section 172(1) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 requires that a revenue statement must state the following:

(a) If the local government levies differential general rates-

(i) The rating categories for rateable land in the local government area; and
(ii) A description of each rating category; and

(b) If the local government levies special rates or charges for a joint government activity-
a summary of the terms of the joint government activity; and

(c) If the local government fixes a cost-recovery fee-the criteria used to decide the
amount of the cost-recovery fee; and

(d) If the local government conducts a business activity on a commercial basis the criteria
used to decide the amount of the charges for the activity's goods and services.

Section 172(2) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires that the revenue statement
for a financial year must include the following information for the financial year:

(a) An outline and explanation of the measures that the local government has adopted
for raising revenue, including an outline and explanation of-

(i) The rates and charges to be levied in the financial year; and
(ii) The concessions for rates and charges to be granted in the financial year;

(b) Whether the local government has made aresolution limiting an increase of rates and
charges.
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REVENUE RAISING MEASURES

The principal revenue raising measures adopted by the Mareeba Shire Council for the
2019/2020 financial year are:

Differential General Rates

Levied on all rateable parcels of land throughout the Shire to cover the operational,
maintenance and capital expenditures associated with the governance and administration of
the Council and the provision of general works and services including but not limited to the
construction, maintenance and management of roads and bridges, economic development,
community relations, disaster management, public parks, gardens, playing grounds, recreation
areas, public swimming pools, health, public conveniences, building, animal control, pest and
declared weed control, environmental management, town planning, public halls, offices and
libraries.

Special Rates

Levied on specified parcels of land which will benefit from the works or services to be provided
by the revenue received from the special rates. Works or services to be provided may include
road, footpath and drainage construction and repairs, adequate car parking, beautification
works, promotional activities, street furniture and decorations, economic and tourism
development activities, and bridge construction.

Special Charges

Levied on specified parcels of land which will specially contribute to the need to, benefit from
or will have special access to services, facilities or activities provided or undertaken by the
Council or are levies collected by Council on behalf of third parties, including those that run
Volunteer Brigade operations, tourism promotion, improved community services, road
upgrading, provision of recreation facilities, water supply extension and provision of sewerage
services.

Separate Charge

Levied on all rateable properties within the Mareeba Shire to fund general operations and
maintenance of the local State Emergency Service group throughout the Mareeba Shire.

Utility Charges

2.3.5.1 Sewerage Utility Charges

Levied in respect of all land where Council deems that sewerage reticulation can be provided
to such land to cover the costs of operation, maintenance and capital expenditure associated
with the sewerage system.

2.3.5.2 Waste Management Utility Charges
Levied for: -

(a) a waste collection service supplied to cover the costs of operation, maintenance and
capital expenditure associated with the provision of collection services; or

(b) the provision of a contribution to the operation and management of refuse transfer
stations and landfills in the Shire
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2.3.5.3 Water Utility Charges

Levied on a Two-Part Tariff basis where Council deems that water can be supplied to such land
from the reticulated system to cover the costs of operation, maintenance and capital
expenditure associated with the water supply system.

2.3.5.4 Trade Waste Utility Charges

Levied in respect to all commercial and industrial generators discharging trade waste into
Council's wastewater system to cover the costs of annual inspections, investigations,
compliance checks and providing advice and education to trade waste generators and property
oWners.

Commercial Charges

Fees charged for provision of services or use of Council facilities e.g. Transfer Station Waste
Disposal Fees and Hire of Public Halls.

Cost-recovery fees

Charges for issue of Licenses, Approvals and Permits e.g. Dog Registrations, Food Premises
Licenses, Town Planning Applications; and

Charges for giving information kept under a Local Government Act; and
Charges for seizing property or animals under the Local Government Act 2009.

Developer Contributions/Infrastructure Charges

Contributions paid by developers towards the cost of providing services to their particular
development or local area e.g. roadworks; parks and gardens; water supply and sewerage.

Grants and Subsidies

Grants and subsidies paid by other levels of government towards Council’s general operational
costs e.g. Financial Assistance Grant, or for Specific Capital Projects.

Loans

Borrowings by the Council to fund specific Council projects e.g. water supply and sewerage
infrastructure.

Interest on Investment

Interest received from the investment of Council funds.

CRITERIA FOR FIXING OF COST-RECOVERY FEES

Cost-recovery fees are fixed pursuant to Section 97 of the Local Government Act 2009 and must
not exceed the cost of providing the service for which the fee has been fixed. Such fees are
therefore broadly based on the user pays principle (except where Council, at its discretion,
decides to subsidise any fee or charge as a community service obligation) and take into account
the following:

(a) The nature of the service provided by the Council and in respect of which the fee has
been fixed e.g. issuing an approval, consent, license, registration or other authority,
giving information kept under a Local Government Act, seizing property or animals
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under a Local Government Act; or performance of a function imposed on the Council
under the Building Act 1975 or the Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002 or Plumbing and
Drainage Act 2018.

(b) The amount of direct costs such as labour, plant and materials involved in the
provision of the specific service for which the fee has been fixed e.g. the cost of
labour and vehicle hire for annual inspection and licensing of food premises or the
cost of stationery or electronic media for distribution of copies of Local Laws,
Minutes, Budgets, Annual Financial Statements etc.

(c) The amount of general Council overheads consumed in the provision of the service
for which the fee has been fixed e.g. office accommodation; electricity, IT facilities

(d) The hours during which the service is performed e.g. the seizure of animals outside
of normal work hours (at night or on weekends).

(e) Whether the provision of the service involves the supply of an item e.g. a dog
registration tag or dangerous dog collar, or the provision of sustenance e.g. feeding
of impounded animals.

2.5 RATES AND CHARGES

Detailed information in relation to the levy of rates and charges is set out below.

2.5.1 Differential General Rates

Council has determined to make and levy differential general rates onrateable land within the
Mareeba Shire Council local government area in respect of the 2019/2020 financial year. The
rateable value upon which the differential general rates are to be levied is based on the
valuation, as determined by the Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy or in the
case of mining claims as per Section 79 of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Council is required to raise an amount of revenue it sees as being appropriate to maintain
assets and provide services to the Shire as a whole.

In deciding how that revenue is raised, Council has taken into account the following factors:

(a) The principles outlined in its adopted Revenue Policy;

(b) The rateable value of the land;

(c) The level of services provided to that land and the cost of providing the services;

(d) The use of land in so far as it relates to the extent of utilisation of Council’s services;
and

(e) Location and access to services

The main criterion adopted by Council for the purpose of categorising the rateable land within
the Shire is that the categorisation should reflect the predominant land use of the property.
Within each predominant land use of some categories, the land has been further categorised
according to valuation.

The following categories, descriptions, rates in the dollar and minimum general rates are to be
used for rating purposes for all rateable properties within the local government area of the
Mareeba Shire Council:
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Column1 -
Category
(Regulation,
section 81)

Column 2 - Description
(Regulation, section 81)

Column 3 -
Differential
General Rate
(Act, section 94;
Regulation,
section 80)
Rate in dollar

Column 4 -
Minimum
General Rate
(Regulation,
section 77)

Al -
Residential
(Urban) - S0 to
$72,000

A2 -
Residential
(Urban) -
$72,001 to
$130,000

All land having a rateable value
of between S0 and $72,000 that
is used for single unit residential
purposes or any other rateable
land not otherwise categorised
including:

* properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is
lodged under the Body Corporate
and Community Management
Act 1997 with an area less than
or equal to 1,000m2, and

¢ all residential land inside of the
urban nodes.

All land having a rateable value
of between $72,001 and
$130,000 that is used for single
unit residential purposes or any
other rateable land not
otherwise categorised including:

* properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is
lodged under the Body Corporate
and Community Management
Act 1997 with an area less than
or equal to 1,000m2, and

* all residential land inside of the
urban nodes.

0.01687

0.01052

$1,056.00

$1,216.00
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Column1 -
Category
(Regulation,
section 81)

Column 2 - Description
(Regulation, section 81)

Column 3 -
Differential
General Rate
(Act, section 94;
Regulation,
section 80)
Rate in dollar

Column 4 —
Minimum
General Rate
(Regulation,
section 77)

A3 -
Residential
(Urban) -
$130,001 to
$203,000

All land having a rateable value
of between $130,001 and
$203,000 that is used for single
unit residential purposes or any
other rateable land not
otherwise categorised including:

» properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is

lodged under the Body Corporate

and Community Management
Act 1997 with an area less than
or equal to 1,000m2, and

* all residential land inside of the
urban nodes.

0.00947

$1,369.00

A4 -
Residential
(Urban) -
Greater than
$203,000

All land having a rateable value
of more than $203,000 that is
used for single unit residential
purposes or any other rateable
land not otherwise categorised
including:

e properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is
lodged under the Body Corporate
and Community Management
Act 1997 with an area less than
or equal to 1,000m2, and

* all residential land inside of the
urban nodes.

0.00811

$1,924.00

Page 41 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1

Page 71



Special Council Meeting Attachments

19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

Column1 -
Category
(Regulation,
section 81)

Column 2 - Description
(Regulation, section 81)

Column 3 -
Differential
General Rate
(Act, section 94;
Regulation,
section 80)
Rate in dollar

Column 4 -
Minimum
General Rate
(Regulation,
section 77)

B1 - Multi
Unit

All land used for multi-unit
dwellings and flats excluding
properties where the Building
Unit Plan, Group Title Plan or
Community Title Scheme is
lodged under the Body Corporate
and Community Management
Act 1997 within an area less than
or equal to 1,000m2.

0.01191

$1,056.00

C1- Non-
Residential

All other non-residential land
excluding land categorised under
categories D1, E1, E2, E3, E4, H1,
J1 and K1, including properties
where the Building Unit Plan,
Group Title Plan or Community
Title Scheme is lodged under the
Body Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997 that
operate as a commercial
business e.g.: unit of shops,
holiday villas etc

0.01243

$1,185.00

D1 - Major
Drive-In Shop
or Shopping
Centre

All land used for a drive-in shop
or shopping centre with a
rateable valuation greater than
or equal to $1,000,000.

0.01858

$30,480.00

E1 - Mining
Lease/Claims

All land where mining leases and
claims are used for prospecting,
developing or use as a mine as
defined in the Mineral Resources
Act 1989, and where no
operators or employees reside
on the property.

0.07096

$515.00

Page 42 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1

Page 72



Special Council Meeting Attachments

19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

5,000 hectares.

Column1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column 4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum
(Regulation, General Rate General Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section 77)
section 80)
Rate in dollar
E2 = Mining All land where mining leases and 0.09250 $1,056.00
Lease/Claims claims are used for prospecting,
developing or use as a mine as
defined in the Mineral Resources
Act 1989, and where one or more
of the operators or employees
reside on the property.
E3 = Mining All land where mining leases and 0.44342 $26,780.00
Lease/Claims claims are used for prospecting,
developing or use as a mine as
defined in the Mineral Resources
Act 1989, and employs between
11 - S0 employees.
E4 - Mining All land where mining leases and 0.88683 $53,560.00
Lease/Claims claims are used for prospecting,
developing or use as a mine as
defined in the Mineral Resources
Act 1989, and employs over 50
employees.
F1 - Primary All land area which is 0.00910 $1,716.00
Production predominately used for primary
production purposes other than
those properties defined as
Category G1.
G1 - Large All land that is used for the 0.00993 $1,716.00
Grazing primary purpose of raising
Properties livestock and land area exceeds

S —
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Column 1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column 4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum
(Regulation, General Rate General Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section 77)
section 80)
Rate in dollar
H1 - Specialty | All land used for the slaughtering 0.01638 $27,017.00
Industries and processing of poultry
11 - Extractive | All land used or capable of being 0.00827 $530.00
Industry used for extractive industry
purposes, where the quantity of
{Qua.rry} material capable of being
maximum of extracted &/or screened is up to
5,000 tonnes | 3 maximum of 5,000 tonnes per
per annum annum,
12 - Extractive | All land used or capable of being 0.00162 $581.00
Industry used for extractive industry
purposes, where the quantity of
(Quarry) material capable of being
between 5,001 | oytracted &/or screened is
and 100,000 between 5,001 tonnes and
tonnes per 100,000 tonnes per annum.
annum
(inclusive)
13 - Extractive | All land used or capable of being 0.00061 $635.00
Industry used for extractive industry
purposes, where the quantity of
(Quarry) material capable of being
greater than extracted &/or screened is
100,000 greater than 100,000 tonnes per
tonnes per annum,
annum
J1 - Heavy Land used for a sugar mill 0.35019 $101,556.00
Industry -
Sugar Mill
K1 - Heavy Land used for a large commercial 0.23346 $71,206.00
Industry - waste facility.
Waste Facility
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Column1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column 4 —
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum
(Regulation, General Rate General Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section 77)
section 80)
Rate in dollar
M1- All residential land having a 0.01322 $1,056.00
Residential rateable value of between $0 and
(Rural) - $0 to $119,000 outside of the urban
nodes, or all land where the
119,000 I ) .
S119, Building Unit Plan or Group Titles
Plan is lodged under the Body
Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997 with an
area exceeding 1,000m2, other
than land that is categorised as
Category F1 (Primary
Production).
M2 - All residential land having a 0.00944 $1,575.00
Residential rateable value of between
(Rural) - $119,001 and $250,000 outside
$119,001 to of the urban nodes, or all land
' where the Building Unit Plan or
$250,000 Group Titles Plan is lodged under
the Body Corporate and
Community Management Act
1997 with an area exceeding
1,000m2, other than land that is
categorised as Category F1
(Primary Production).
M3 - All residential land having a 0.00938 $2,361.00
Residential rateable value greater than
(Rural) - $250,000 outside of the urban
greater than nodes, or all land where the
$250,000 Building Unit Plan or Group Titles
! Plan is lodged under the Body
Corporate and Community
Management Act 1997 with an
area exceeding 1,000m2, other
than land that is categorised as
Category F1 (Primary
Production).
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Column1 - Column 2 - Description Column 3 - Column 4 -
Category (Regulation, section 81) Differential Minimum
(Regulation, General Rate General Rate
section 81) (Act, section 94; (Regulation,
Regulation, section 77)
section 80)
Rate in dollar
N1 - Unused All vacant land in the localities of 1.01000 Nil
land Watsonville, Irvinebank, Mt
Albion, Thornborough, Stannary
Hills, Chillagoe, Dimbulah and
Mungana thatis not used for any
purpose and is not included in
any other category.
S1-Approved | All land valued in accordance 0.01296 Nil

subdividers

with the provisions of Section 49
of the Land Valuation Act 2010
and Section 77 (3) of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.
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Minimum General Rates

A minimum general rate has been set for each category that takes into account the minimum
cost per annum of providing common services to every ratepayer as well as general
administration costs.

Council exempts the following types of properties from the Minimum General Rate under
Section 77 (3) of the Local Government Regulation 2012:

« Allland subject to concessional valuation in accordance with the provisions of Section 49
of the Land Valuation Act 2010.

Limitation of Increase in Rates or Charges

For 2019/2020, Council will not be resolving, pursuant to section 116 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012, to limit the increase of any rates or charges.

Objection to Rating Categorisation

In accordance with Chapter 4, Part 5, Division 4 of the Local Government Regulation 2012,
owners of rateable land have the right of objection to the category their land is included in. All
objections shall be made to the Chief Executive Officer, Mareeba Shire Council within 30 days
of the date of issue of the rate notice.

The only basis for objection shall be that at the date of issue of the rate notice, having regard
to the description adopted by Council, the land should be in another category. If an owner is
aggrieved by the decision of the Chief Executive Officer, the owner may appeal to the Land
Court against the decision,

Utility Charges

In setting its utility charges for water, sewerage and waste management, Council maintains a
user pays policy whereby the full costs of providing such services are paid by the users of those.

2.5.5.1 Sewerage Utility Charges

Sewerage utility charges for land where Council deems that sewerage reticulation can be
provided are to be levied irrespective of whether the land is vacant or occupied, and whether
or not it is rateable land.

In respect of newly subdivided vacant land, sewerage utility charges shall be levied
proportionally for the unexpired part of the year from the date the plan of subdivision is
registered at the Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy or from the date of
sewerage connection to the respective parcel of land, which ever date is the earlier.

In circumstances where dwellings are built over the boundary line of two or more parcels and
the ratepayer proves that this is the case, Council shall levy one sewerage access charge as if
it were one parcel. In the situation that Council is currently charging one access charge for two
parcels with a dwelling built over the boundary line, there will be no need for the ratepayer to
provide further proof.
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Kuranda and Myola Sewerage Scheme

Properties in the defined sewerage areas for the Kuranda and Myola area are charged
sewerage charges to fund sewage transportation and treatment costs including maintenance
and provision for upgrades and replacement of the sewerage infrastructure. The charges are
set toreflect the cost of the provision of sewerage services to each town and a unit base applies
and the units are based on sewerage consumption equivalence factors for various land uses.

For those properties that share both residential and non-residential structures, the premises
shall be considered mixed use premises attracting both unit and charge per unit factors for
each type of structure.

Mareeba Sewerage Scheme

Properties in the defined sewerage areas in Mareeba are charged sewerage charges to fund
sewage transportation and treatment costs including maintenance and provision for upgrades
and replacement of the sewerage infrastructure. The charges are set to reflect the cost of the
provision of sewerage services to each town and a unit base applies. The units are based on
sewerage consumption equivalence factors for various land uses.

For those properties that share both residential and non-residential structures, the premises
shall be considered mixed use premises attracting both unit and charge per unit factors for
each type of structure.

2.5.5.2 Waste Collection Utility Charge (Wheelie Bin)

Waste Collection Utility Charges for land or structures where Council deems that a service will
be supplied for each residence, flat, strata title unit, will be charged $294.00 per wheelie bin
service whether or not a service is rendered.

The service will be supplied to premises in the waste area which is defined as an area in which
Council or Council's contractors provide a solid waste collection service.

In respect of improvements erected during the year, waste collection utility charges shall be
levied proportionally for the unexpired part of the year from the date council determines the
improvement is ready for occupation.

For users, the charge will be for a weekly collection of one (1) wheelie bin. The proceeds from
the charge will fund the operation of the collection service, transport management and costs
of disposal of refuse collected.

2.5.5.3 Waste Management Utility Charge

A utility charge for refuse transfer stations and landfills, to be known as the “Waste
Management Charge” will be levied on certain properties.

The purpose of this charge is to provide a contribution to the operation and management of
refuse transfer stations and landfills in the Shire and includes the costs of pre-cyclone clean
ups and waste education.

Council is of the opinion that all assessable properties that fall within the assessable area will
benefit from the provision of these solid waste facilities and services.
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The budgeted cost of managing and operating the refuse transfer stations and landfills is not
fully funded by this utility charge. Further funding will be provided by other charges and
revenue generated at the refuse transfer stations and landfills.

2.5.5.4 Water Utility Charges

Water utility charges are for land where Council deems that water can be supplied from the
reticulated system and are to be levied irrespective of whether the land is vacant or occupied,
and whether or not it is rateable land.

In respect of newly subdivided vacant land, water utility charges shall be levied proportionally
for the unexpired part of the year from the date the plan of subdivision is lodged at the Titles
Office or from the date of water connection to the respective parcel of land, which ever date
is the earlier.

The water utility charge is levied on a Two-Part Tariff basis as follows.
Access Charge

An access charge which covers the fixed (capital) costs of providing the water supply taking
into account asset upgrades and replacements and provision for future needs of the water
infrastructure.

In circumstances where dwellings are built over the boundary line of two or more parcels and
the ratepayer proves that this is the case, Council shall levy one water access charge as if it
were one parcel.

In the situation that Council is currently charging one access charge for two parcels with a
dwelling built over the boundary line, there will be no need for the ratepayer to provide further
proof.

Mareeba, Dimbulah, Kuranda, Chillagoe and Mount Molloy

Water access charges are categorised and charged on the basis of the location of the user and
the water supplied (treated/untreated.) There is no differential between residential and other
non-residential users.

A residential access charge will be levied on each parcel of land or each dwelling, whichever is
the greater in number.

Anon-residential access charge will be levied on each parcel of land used for business purposes
or each business, whichever is the greater in number.
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Non-Standard Access charges will apply to the following:

Description Charge Type

Flats and/or Units 1 Residential Access charge per unit or flat

Motels or self-contained hotel rooms 1 Non-Residential Access charge per every
3 rooms

Hotel rooms and boarding houses 1 Non-Residential Access charge per every

(shared ablution facilities) 4 rooms

Church 1 Non-Residential Access charge per parcel
of land

Schools and Pre-schools 1 Non-Residential Access charge per parcel
of land

Childcare and Kindergarten facility 1 Non-Residential Access charge per parcel
of land

Vacant land in a village land use zone 1 Residential Access charge per parcel of
land

Residential house with detached unit 1 Residential Access charge per dwelling
and
1 Residential Access charge per unit

For those properties that share both residential and non-residential structures, the premises
shall be considered mixed use premises attracting both residential, non-residential or non-
standard access charges for each type of structure,

Water Usage Charge
For the purpose of water usage charges, these willbe based on when the water was consumed:

« water consumed from 1 January 2019 to 30 June 2019 will be charged at the rates
applicable to 2018/2019 financial year (read in July 2019); and

« water consumed from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 will be charged at the rates
applicable to 2019/2020 financial year (read in January 2020); and

« water consumed from 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2020 will be charged at the rates
applicable to 2019/2020 financial year (read in July 2020).

A water usage or consumption charge which covers the variable costs of supplying water to
consumers (e.g. wages, chemicals, electricity, maintenance) with such charges to be on a two-
tiered basis. Mareeba, Dimbulah, Chillagoe, Kuranda and Mt Molloy will be on a two-tier
system.

Consumption of water that exceeds the quantity in Tier 1 will be subject to charges based on
Tier 2. Water consumption charges shall be based on meter readings conducted twice during
the year. The times of reading will be on or around July 2019 and January 2020.
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Where a water meter appears to be faulty (for example the occupied property has no water
consumption, or it is obvious that the water meter is faulty) Council may estimate the water
usage for the current consumption period using all reasonable information available to Council
and adjust the water consumption accordingly. The estimate could be based on either of the
following:

(a) An average of the water consumption over a period of time; or

(b) An average of the water consumption for the duration of the high-water usage shown
on the Automated Meter Reading (AMR); or

(c) Anestimate if average cannot be calculated.

2.5.5.5 Trade Waste Utility Charges

Trade waste utility charges will apply to all commercial and industrial generators discharging
trade waste into Council's wastewater system in accordance with the Water Supply (Safety and
Reliability) Act 2008.

An annual fixed charge, which is determined by the applicable category, will be applied to each
to property. The charge is to recover costs associated with the management of the trade waste
service including:

(a) conducting site inspections, investigations and compliance checks;
(b) ensuring appropriate pre-treatment devices are installed and maintained; and
(c) providing advice and education to trade waste generators and property owners

Approved trade waste connections are allocated to the following five (5) categories in
accordance with Councils Trade Waste Policy and Trade Waste Plan;

Trade Waste Category Description Annual Fixed Charge
Category 1 Low Risk S 0.00
Category 2 Low - medium Risk S 200.00
Category 3 Medium Risk S 400.00
Category 4 High Risk S 600.00
Industry * Significant Risk $10,000.00

* In situations where Industry have Council approval to discharge to the sewer the trade waste
charge as above will apply.

In relation to the Industry annual fixed base charge, consideration will be given for hardship
concessions on a case by case basis.

For new connections, charges will be applicable on a pro rata basis for the first billing
period. Council may issue supplementary rates notices for trade waste charges at any point
during a financial year.
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2.5.6 Special Rates and Charges

Inresponse to community needs, Special Rates and Charges are levied on identified properties
for specific projects as listed below:

2.5.6.1 Special Charge - Irvinebank Reservoir Water Supply Benefited Area

This special charge of $400.00 per property will be levied on all properties in the Irvinebank
Water Benefited Area to cover the costs of operation and maintenance associated with
delivering water from the Ibis Dam to the town reservoirs.

2.5.6.2 Special Charge - Irvinebank Township Water Supply Benefited Area

This special charge of $50.00 per property will be levied on all properties in the Irvinebank
Water Benefited Area for the purpose of raising funds for operation and the maintenance of
the water reticulation system from the town reservoirs to the properties.

2.5.6.3 Special Rate — Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda) - Commercial
Properties

This special rate is levied on properties in the Kuranda Benefited Area to fund the tourism
industry strategies and promotion strategies and programs for those commercial properties

identified.
Category $ Rate in Dollar
Kuranda Benefited Area 1 0.0131%90
Kuranda Benefited Area 3 - Limited Tourism operations 0.001097

2.5.6.4 Special Charge - Kuranda Benefited Area (Tourism Kuranda)- small
accommodation operators

This special charge is levied on properties in the Kuranda Benefited Area to fund the tourism
industry strategies and promotion strategies and programs for those commercial properties

identified.
Category $ Charge
Kuranda Benefited Area 2 - Small accommodation operators
One (1) self-contained unit/independent bedroom 196.00
Two (2) self-contained units/independent bedrooms 392.00
Three (3) self-contained units/independent bedrooms 588.00
Four (4) or more self-contained units/independent bedrooms 784.00

2.5.6.5 Special Rates — Mareeba Benefited Area

This special rate is levied on properties in the Mareeba Benefited Area to fund projects
including but not limited to road, drainage, footpath construction and repair, beautification
works, promotional activities, economic and tourism development, street furniture and
decorations.
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Category $ Rate in Dollar
Mareeba Benefited Area 1 $0.00223
Mareeba Benefited Area 2 $0.00154
Mareeba Benefited Area 3 $0.00062

2.5.6.6 Special Charge — Extractive Industry Road Contribution

This special charge is levied on all extractive industry properties to fund road construction and
repair and drainage construction and repair within the Shire.

Category | Description $ Charge

ERC1 All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $1,340.00

material being extracted &/or screened is up to amaximum of 5,000

tonnes per annum.

ERC2 All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $4,018.00

material being extracted &/or screened is between 5,001 tonnes

and 20,000 tonnes per annum,

ERC3 Allland used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of $8,034.00

material being extracted &/or screened is between 20,001 tonnes

and 40,000 tonnes per annum.

ERC4 Allland used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of | §13 390.00

material being extracted &/or screened is between 40,001 tonnes

and 60,000 tonnes per annum.

ERCS All land used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of | ¢> 1,424.00

material being extracted &/or screened is between 60,001 tonnes

and 100,000 tonnes per annum,

ERCE Allland used for extractive industry purposes, where the quantity of | ¢ 780.00
material being extracted &/or screened is greater than 100,000

“tonnes per annum.

2.5.6.7 Special Charge - Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive

This annual charge of $240.00 per property will be levied on all rateable properties fronting
Hickory Road and Rosewood Drive for the purpose of funding a project to bitumen seal this
section. This special charge is being levied for a period of ten (10) years commencing 1 July
2010 and ending 30 June 2020.

2.5.6.8 Special Charge — Kuranda and Districts Aquatic Centre

This annual special charge of $36.00 will be levied on all properties in the defined area for a
period of 15 years ending 30 June 2021, as a contribution to the cost of the installation of the
centre. The special levy contribution will provide $782,600.00 towards the total cost of the
Centre of $1,828,942.00.

Should further subdivision occur in the specified area during the year ending 30 June 2020,
each new sub-divided lot will be required to pay the special charge as outlined above.

2.5.6.9 Special Charges - Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Levy

The levying of special charges for volunteer brigade services for the following volunteer
brigade areas, in accordance with Section 94 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, are:
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Volunteer Brigades Areas Annual Charge
Davies Creek 30.00
Hodzic 40.00
Irvinebank 20.00
Julatten 20.00
Koah Road 20.00
Kuranda/Myola 40.00
Mount Molloy 20.00
Mutchilba 50.00
Paddy's Green 50.00
Speewah 20.00
Springmount Primary 40.00
Walsh River 50.00
Watsonville 40.00
Wolfram Road 50.00
Walkamin 30.00

These charges are provided to assist volunteer brigades to meet their costs of purchasing and
maintaining equipment.

The annual Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance levy will be levied twice each
financial year or as otherwise decided by Council at its budget meeting provided however a
property owner shall not be required to pay more than one levy in each Volunteer Brigade
area.

2.5.6.10 Special Rate - Russett Park Bridge

This annual special rate of $0.0016 per dollar is levied on properties in the Russett Park area
that in Council’s opinion, benefited from improved accessibility via a high-level bridge. This
special rate is being levied for a period of 20 years ending on 30 June 2024 to contribute
towards the $900,000.00 cost of the bridge. The special rate will provide the equivalent of
interest and principal repayment of a 20-year loan of $200,000 at the interest rate of 6.5% per
annum.

Should further subdivision occur in the Russett Park area during the year ending 30 June 2020,
each new sub-divided lot will be required to pay the special charge as outlined above.

2.5.7 Separate Charges and Levy

2.5.7.1 Local State Emergency Services Levy (Local SES Levy)

This annual separate charge of $3.30 is levied on all rateable properties within the Shire to
fund the general operations and maintenance of the local State Emergency Services Groups.

2.5.7.2 State Government Emergency Management Levy (EML)

Council charges the State Emergency Management Levy (EML) on behalf of the Queensland
State Government, in accordance with the provisions of the Fire and Emergency Services Act
1990 and Fire and Emergency Services Regulation 2011.
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2.6 TIMEAND MANNER OF PAYMENT OF RATES AND CHARGES

2.6.1 Discount on Rates and Utility Charges for Prompt Payment

A discount of 10% per annum of differential general rates only shall be allowed, provided that
all current and outstanding rates and charges (excluding all outstanding adopted infrastructure
charges) are paid in full and received by Council by the due date of the rate notice.

2.6.1.1 Payment Errors

Where there is an apparent accidental short payment of the rates resulting from a
miscalculation of the net amount due, arising from the payment of a number of Rates Notices
at one time (i.e. addition or transposition error); or

the tendering of an incorrect amount for a single Rate Notice (i.e. transposition error), then
discount will be allowed in the following manner: -

+ The ratepayer will be advised in writing and given 14 days to pay the shortfall. If the
shortfall is paid by the extended due date so advised, full discount will be allowed at
that time.

2.6.2 Fees and Cost-Recovery Charges

Fees and Cost-recovery charges will be reviewed annually having regard to the criteria for
fixing of cost-recovery charges specified elsewhere herein.

2.6.3 Half Yearly Levy

Council has determined, in accordance with the provisions of Section 107 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, that rates and charges will be levied in two (2) instalments
covering the periods 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2020.

In instances where changes that impact property rates and charges are brought to Council's
attention throughout the year, supplementary rates notices will be issued monthly as
required. Some examples might include reconfigurations, valuation amendments, additional
services and change of ownership.

2.6.4 Intereston Overdue Rates and Charges

All Rates and Charges outstanding at the end of the discount period are deemed to be overdue
rates and Council will apply interest at the rate of 9.83% per annum calculated on daily rests
from the day after the Rates and Charges become overdue.

2.6.5 Manner of Payment of Rates and Charges and General Charges

All Rates and Charges are payable during specified opening hours at each of Council’s Offices
located at:

« 65 Rankin Street, Mareeba; or
« 18-22 Arara Street, Kuranda.

Payments may also be made electronically using BPay, Post BillPay, Australia Post MyPost and
direct deposit.
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2.6.6

2.6.7

2.7

2.7.1

2.7.2

2.7.3

Refunds of Rates and Charges Payments

Council will only refund payments of rates and charges if the property has a credit balance.
There will be no refunds of payments if the property has a debit balance.

If an administration error has occurred and a credit adjustment is due, the statute of
limitations is six (6) years under Section 10 of the Limitation of Actions Act 1974. No credits
will be processed more than six (6) years prior to the date of occurrence of the administration
error.

Time within which Rates and Charges must be Paid

All rates and charges must be paid by the date shown on the rate notice, which is a date that
is at least thirty (30) days after the day the rate notice is issued.

REBATES AND CONCESSIONS ON RATES AND CHARGES

Payment of Rates by Periodic Payments

Where, by reason of economic hardship, a ratepayer is unable to pay rates and charges due
within the prescribed payment period, Council may, in lieu of resorting to legal action for
recovery of these rates or charges, enter into an arrangement with the ratepayer concerned
for payment of the rates and charges by periodic payments. Where periodic payments are to
be made either: weekly, fortnightly or monthly, such periodic payments will be accepted on
the condition that the maximum term of the arrangement clears the account within the half
year period of issue, being 31 December or 30 June within the financial year. Discount is not
allowable where such arrangements have been entered into.

All Rates and Charges outstanding at the end of the period in which they fall due are deemed
to be overdue rates and Council will apply interest at the rate of 9.83% per annum calculated
on daily rests from the day after the Rates and Charges become overdue and may be subject
to further collection measures in accordance with the attached Debt Recovery Policy Appendix
A (Page 66).

Other Remission and Deferrals

Other remission requests, or rate deferral requests, will be assessed on a case by case basis.

Remissions

2.7.3.1 Council Pensioner Remission

Council grants a remission of thirty percent (30%) of the differential general rates (up to a
maximum of $240.00 per year) to pensioners within the Mareeba Shire Council area, providing
they qualify for a remission in accordance with Council’s conditions as set out in the attached
Rate Rebates and Remission Policy Appendix C (Page 76).

2.7.3.2 State Government Pensioner Remission

In addition to the remission allowed by Council, the State Government Scheme for
Subsidisation of Rates and Charges payable to Local Authorities by Approved Pensioners is
administered by the Council and under this scheme a further 20% remission is allowed to
approved pensioners up to a maximum of $200.00 per annum on rates and charges plus an
additional 20% subsidy on the State Emergency Management levy.
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2.7.3.3 Rate and Charge Remission Not-for-Profit

Council will grant a remission to Council approved not-for-profit community, recreation and
sporting groups based on the level of commerciality of the group in accordance with Council's
conditions as set out in the attached Rate Rebates and Remission Policy Appendix C (Page 76).

Council will grant a rate remission of 100% on all general rates and a charge remission of 100%
on Utility Charges (sewerage, waste collection, waste management and water access charges),
Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Levy and local SES Levy only, to Council
approved Type A Community Groups who own or lease a property within the Mareeba Shire
excluding vacant land, provided that they satisfy the conditions as set out in the attached Rate
Rebates and Remission Policy Appendix C (Page 76).

Council will grant a rate remission of 50% up to a maximum of $1,000.00 on all general rates
and a charge remission of 20% up to a maximum of $200.00 on Utility Charges (sewerage,
waste collection, waste management and water access charges), Volunteer Brigade Equipment
and Maintenance Levy and local SES Levy only to Council approved Type B Community Groups
who own or lease a property within the Mareeba Shire excluding vacant land, provided that
they satisfy the conditions as set out in the attached Rate Rebates and Remission Policy
Appendix C (Page 76).

Council will grant a water consumption charge remission of 35% up to a maximum of $2,000.00
for Group 1 Category, $1,000.00 for Group 2 Category and $500.00 for Group 3 Category if
water consumption exceeds $100.00 per annum provided that they satisfy the conditions as
set out in the attached Rate Rebates and Remission Policy Appendix C (Page 76).

2.7.4 Water Concession and Waste Service for Home Renal Dialysis

Mareeba Shire Council provides financial assistance to the property owner to offset water
usage costs for the use of Home Renal Dialysis Equipment plus allow a provision of additional
waste bin service for the excess waste used by renal patients, as set out in the attached Water
and Waste Concession for Home Renal Dialysis Policy Appendix D (Page 82).

2.8 OTHER MATTERS CONCERNING RATES AND CHARGES

2.8.1 Collection of Outstanding Rates and Charges

Council requires payment of rates and charges within the specified period and it is Council’s
policy to pursue the collection of outstanding rates and charges diligently but with due concern
for the financial hardship faced by some members of the community.

To this end, Council has established administrative processes which allow for the payment of
rates and charges by periodic payments and for the selection of various options (including legal
action) for the recovery of debt, as set out in the attached Debt Recovery Policy Appendix A
(Page 66).

2.8.2 Paymentin Advance

Council accepts payments in advance. Interest is not payable on any credit balances held. Rates
discount will apply in the event that the entire account has been paid in full by the discount
due date.
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2.9 APPLICATION OF CODE OF COMPETITIVE CONDUCT - COUNCIL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Where an activity has been nominated as compliant with the code of competitive conduct, the
principles of full cost pricing have been applied. These activities include; Waste Management,

Water, Wastewater, Laboratory and Building Services.

The following is only a summary and a full statement can be requested from Council.

National Competition Policy
For the budgeted year ended 30 June 2020

Water  Wastewater Waste  Laboratory Building
services services management services services
2019/20 2019720 2019720 2019/20 2019/20
($'000) ($7000) {$'000) {$'000) {$'000)
Revenues for services provided to the Council 300 38 . 20
Revenues for services provided to external clients 5,989 5,087 5,526 115 2
Community service obligations . - 1
Total Revenue 6,289 5,125 5,526 205 3
Less: Expenditure 5,300 3823 4,964 361 3
Surplus/(Deficit) 989 1,302 562 {156)

Listof Community Service Obligations
Travel
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3.1 SCHEDULE1-WATER

3.1.1 Water Access

« Charge per parcel of land or per improvement, whichever is the greater

Classifications Chillagoe Dimbulah Mareeba Kuranda Mt Molloy | Untreated

Water

Vacant Land $534.00 $534.00 $534.00 $534.00 $491.00
Residential $534.00 $534.00 $534.00 $534.00 $491.00 $439.00
Non-residential / Mixed-use $534.00 $534.00 $534.00 $534.00 $491.00 $439.00

structures / Metered Common
Properties
Industrial Water $4,757.00 $4,757.00 $4,757.00 $4,757.00 $4,757.00
Page 59 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1

Page 89



Special Council Meeting Attachments

19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020
L _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________J

SCHEDULE 1 (CONT'D)

3.1.2 Water Consumption

« Charge per Kilolitre

Classifications Chillagoe Dimbulah Mareeba Kuranda Mt Molloy U'w::::d
2018/19
First Tier Limit 0-550 0-550 0-550 0-550 0-550 0-3000
Second Tier Limit >550 >550 >550 >550 >550 >3000
First Tier Charge $0.6888 $0.6888 $0.6888 $0.6888 $0.3967 $0.1014
Second Tier Charge $1.3918 $1.3918 $1.3918 $1.3918 $1.2992 $0.4376
2019/20
First Tier Limit 0-550 0-550 0-550 0-550 0-550 0-3000
Second Tier Limit >550 >550 >550 >550 >550 >3000
First Tier Charge $0.7060 $0.7060 $0.7060 $0.7060 $0.4066 $0.1039
Second Tier Charge $1.4266 $1.4266 $1.4266 $1.4266 $1.3317 $0.4485
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SCHEDULE 1 (CONT'D)

3.1.3 Water Charges - Two-Tier Water Areas

+ Non-Standard Fixed Water Access Charges (including Mixed-Use Structures)

Classifications Charge | Chillagoe Dimbulah Mareeba Kuranda Mt Molloy Untreated
Basis Water
For . .
. 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential
Flats and or Units every ) ) ) ) ) )
. Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
unit/flat
Motels or Self- For 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1 Non-
contained Hotel every 3 Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential
Rooms rooms Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
Hotel Rooms &
. For 1 Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non-
Boarding Houses _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
) every 4 Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential
(shared ablution ) ) ) ) ) )
block) rooms Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
oc
per 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non-
Church parcel Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential
of land Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
per 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non-
Schools and Pre- . _ _ _ ) ) ) ) : ; ; .
hool parcel Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential
schools
of land Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
per 1 Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1 Non- 1Non- 1Non-
Childcare and _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Kind t parcel Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential Residential
indergarten
¢ of land Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
. per . . . . . . . . . . . .
Vacant land in : 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential
arcel
Village Zone p“ d Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit Access Unit
of lan
1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential
Access Access Access Access Access Access
per Charge per Charge per Charge per Charge per Charge per Charge per
Residential House dwel::ilng dwelling & dwelling & dwelling & dwelling & dwelling & dwelling &
. . an
with detached Unit 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential | 1 Residential
per unit Access Access Access Access Access Access
Charge per Charge per Charge per Charge per Charge per Charge per
Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit Unit
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3.2 SCHEDULE 2 - SEWERAGE

3.2.1 Residential and Vacant/Unconnected Sewerage Charges

As a basis for levying

Charge Charge | Units
sewerage charges

Vacant / Unconnected Land (per parcel) $734.00 1
Kuranda and Myola ; ;

¥ Dwelling (per dwelling) $900.00 1

Sewerage

Units and Flats (per unit/flat) $900.00 1

Vacant / Unconnected Land / Outbuilding (per $734.00 1

parcel)
Mareeba Sewerage Dwelling (per dwelling) $900.00 1

Units and Flats (per unit/flat) $900.00 1
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SCHEDULE 2 (CONT'D)

3.2.2 Non-Residential Sewerage Charges

« Kuranda and Myola - charge per parcel or improvement - $300.00 per unit

Premises Description Units
ACCOMMODATION
Accommodation (per room) 1.5

COMMUNITY SERVICES / FACILITIES

Church and Other Religious Halls (including the Masonic Temple)
Community Facilities, Public Halls (Non-Specific) / Community Organisations
Public Library

Kuranda Community Precinct

Kuranda Amphitheatre with Public Toilets

Public Swimming Pool 12
EDUCATION / KINDERGARTEN / CHILD CARE

Lo |wlw

Kindergarten 3
Private School 63
Prep to Year 12 State School 168
GOVERNMENT

Council Depots and Offices, Telephone Exchange 3
Emergency Services - Fire 3
Council run Visitor Information Centre with Public Toilets 12
Emergency Services - Police 15
BUSINESSES / OTHER

Food Establishments

o Small (takeaway or seating for less than 15 persons) 6

¢ Medium (seating for approximately 16 to 25 persons) 9

e Large (seating for more than 25 persons) 18
Other Business Premises/Operations (per unit/shop front) 3
Other Industrial Premises or Units 3
Large Retails Shops / Supermarkets 6
Service Station (fuel) 12
Laundromat 15
Hotel 60
MAJOR TOURIST ATTRACTIONS
Butterfly Sanctuary Breeding Plant, Venom Zoo 3
Theatre 6
Birdworld, Koala Gardens, Market Stalls 12
Butterfly Sanctuary 27
Tourist Transport Hub - Skyrail/Railway Stations 60

Page 63 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 93



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

SCHEDULE 2 (CONT'D)

3.2.3 Non-Residential Sewerage Charges

+ Mareeba - Charge per pedestal and urinal within sewered area capable of being
sewered - $900.00 per pedestal/urinal.

Premises Description Units
Accommodation
Motel (per room) 0.80
Boarding, Lodging, Hostels (per 4 beds) 0.80
Caravan Park 0.80

Community Services

Garden Settlement 0.21

Church/Mosque 0.60
Other

Rodeo Complex - Kerribee Park 0.21
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APPENDIXA  DEBT RECOVERY POLICY 2019/20

Debt Recovery Policy 2019/20 Mareeba
SHIRE COUNCIL
Policy Type Council Policy Versior: 10
Responsible Officer ' Manager Finaice [ Date Approved ' 13 June 2019
Review Cfficer ‘ Director Corporate aad Community Services ‘ Review Due: l 17 June 2020
Author: ‘ Manager hinaice ‘ Lommercerent . 12 June 2009
Document Number: . ‘ Published: . External

1. PURPOSE

To establish a policy for the recovery of cutstanding Rates and Charges and Sundry Debtors.

2. POLICY STATEMENT

The intent of this policy is to provide procedural direction to ensure prompt follow-up and timely
collection of overdue Rates and Charges and other amounts owed to Council.

3. PRINCIPLES

31 RATES AND CHARGES

Rates and charges are due and payable within thirty (30) days after the date of issue of the Rate Notice,

3.1.1 Recovery Action

Tor those rates and charges that are outstanding by thirty-seven (37) days or more, a first
reminder notice is to be generated and sent for all properties with a debt, excluding those
propertics that have a current approved arrangement to pay.

The reminder notice will give a further fourteen (14) days to pay the outstanding amount or come
to an alternative arrangement acceptable to Council.

Should the ratepayer not make full payment or come to an acceptable alternative, the account
will be referred to Council’s collection agency (elected throuzh quotation or tender).

For those accounts where the ratepayer only has the current levy outstanding with no arrears
and does not have an approved arrangement to pay with Council, the ratepayer will be issued a
second reminder fourteen (14) days after the first reminder was issued.

The reminder notice will give a further fourteen (14) days to pay the outstanding amount or come
to an alternative arrangement acceptable to Council. Should the ratepayer not make full payment
or come to an acceptable alternative, the account will then be referred to Council’s collection
agency, for all outstanding balances greater than fifty { $50) dollars.
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I Debt Recovery Policy 2019/20 I

Should a mining lease expire or he cancelled and that mining lease still have rates and charges
outstanding, the ratepayer will be forwarded immediately to Council's debt collection agency
provided they are not already rezistered with the debt collection agency.

3.1.2 Alternative Arrangements

An arrangement to pay the overdue amount will be offered where payments are made on a
periodic basis, of cither weckly, fortnightly or monthly and on the condition that the maximum
term of the arrangement clears the account within the half year period of issue, being 31
December or 30 June within the financial year.

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 and Council's budget resolution, overdue
rates will be charged compound interest at 9.83% per annum, calculated on a daily basis up to
date of payment

Upon agreement of an alternative arrangement, the ratepayer shall receive from Council a letter
informing them of the arrangement and the details of the payment plan.

Should the payment plan not be met {without agreement from Council) then the payment plan
is considered cancelled and full payment of the amount outstanding is due immediately.

Should more than one payment plan be forteited (wathout agreement trom Council), full payment
of the amount outstanding is due immediately and noc more payment plans will be accepted by
Council while the applicant still owns the property.

3.1.3 Unable to Locate Ratepayer

Should Council and the debt collection agency be unable to locate the ratepayer and the
ratepayer’s file has been sent to the debt collection agency twice within a 12 month period, then
Council should hold action until the property falls into the three (3) year period required to sell
under the Local Government Act 2009.

3.1.4 Legal Action

A collection agent acting on behalf of Council will be empowered to attempt to recover the
outstanding rates.

Initially, letters of demand will be sent to outstanding ratepayers advising that Council has
instructed their agency to collect the rates arrears and if payment is not made within the
specified period, they will continue with legal sction,

For legal action to ¢« nce on an outstanding rates account, it must first be approved by the
Manager Finance. Generally, legal accounts will only be commenced if the account is greater than
$500.

Legal action will continue unless an acceptable payment plan is arranged or payment in full
including all legal outlays is made.

If judgement has been obtained, all payments made on outstanding rates accounts will first pay
for any legal outlays prior to being applied to any outstanding rates.
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3.2

¢ legal action may take the form of a "Notice of Intention to Sue” or a direct "Summons” to the
appropriate Court.

o Where Coundcil is of the opinion that debt recovery through the Courts will not result in full
payment of the amount outstanding, or Council has been notified that a receiver or manager has
been appointed to manage the financial affairs of the ratepayer, Council may elect to wait for a
rate to become overdue for three years and begin Sale of Land procedures in accordance with
the Local Government Act 2009.

3.1.5 Delegations

The Council delegates to the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), the ability to negotiate longer payment
terms with ratepayers if, in the CEQ's estimation, payment causes undue hardship.

The following delegations are only to be used when administration adjustments and/or corrections
are to be made; all other write otfs of outstanding rates and charges are to be approved by Council.
3.1.5.1.  Rates & Revenue Officer Delegation

The Chief Executive Officer {(CEO] delegates to the Rates & Revenue Officer the ability to write off
small amounts of outstanding rates and charges balances to the value of ten dollars {510).

3.1.5.2. Finonce Monager Delegation

The Chiet Fxecutive Otficer delegates to the Finance Manager the ahility to write oft amounts of rates
and charges, interest, lost discount and legal costs to the value of two thousand, five hundred dollars
(52,500).

3.1.5.3. Director Corporate and Community Services

The Chief Cxecutive Officer delegates to the Director Corporate and Community Services the ability
to write off amounts of rates and charges, interest, lost discount and legal costs to the value of five
thousand dollars (55,000).

3.1.54.  Chief Executive Officer Delegation

The Council delegates to the CEO the ability to write off amounts of rates and charges, interest, lost
discount and legal costs to the value of ten thousand dollars (510,000).

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables are those accounts receivable that are debts owed to the Council for performing works
and services. These receivables do notinclude rates and charges or fines.

3.2.1 Recovery Action

e For those receivables that are outstending thirly (307 days from date of issue, an overdue
reminder is marked on the end of month statement ifor all debts).

*  For those receivables that are outstanding sixty (60) days from date of issue, a fist demand letter
is to be generated and sent for all debts greater than fifty (50) dollars.

* The first demand letter is to provide the customer with an additional 14 days to pay the account.
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a.

o For those accounts where the amount is still outstanding ninety (90) days after the first demand
letter, a second and final demand letter shall be generated advising that there is fourteen (14)
days to pay the outstanding balance or come to an alternative payment arrangement acceptable
to Council.

e Failure to pay the final demand letter may mean the Council shall undertake legal recovery (for
all debts greater than fifty dollars ($507)

3.2.2 Unable to Locate Debtor

Should Council and the debt collect gency be ble to locate the debtor and the file has been
sent to the debt collection agency twice within a 12 month period, then the balance is to be written-
off in accordance with the approved delegations

3.2.3 Delegations

The Council delegates to the Chief Executive Officer (CED), the ability to negotiate longer payment
terms with the Sundry Debtor if. in the CEOQ's estimation, payment causes undue hardship.

The following delegations are only to be used when ad 1 adjus ts and/or corrections
are ta be made; all other write offs of outstanding amounts are to be approved by Council.

3.2.31.  Rotes &R Officer Deleg

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) delegates to the Rates & Revenue Officer the ability to write off
small amounts of outstanding balances to the value of ten dollars ($10).

3.2.32. Finonce Manager Delegation

The Chief Exccutive Officer delegates to the Finance Manager the ability to write off amounts up to
two thousand, five hundred dollars ($2,500) for Other Receivables as a bad debt.

3.2.33. Director Corporate and Community Services

The Chief Executive Officer delegates to the Director Corporate and Community Services the ability
to write off amounts up to five thousand dollars 155,000] for Other Receivables as a bad debt.
3.2.34. CEO Delegation

The Council delegates to the CEO the ability to write off amounts up to ten thousand dollars {$10,000)
for Other Receivables as a bod debt.

SCOPE

This policy applies to all ratepayers and other debtors of Mareeba Shire Council

5.

RELATED DOCUMENTS AND REFERENCES

Local Government Act 2009
local Government Regulation 2012
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6. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be formally reviewed annually or as required by
Council.
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Water Leak Management Policy 2019/20 Sv% Mareeba
SHIRE COUNCIL
=nlicy Type Council Policy Viersion: 10
Responsible Officer | Manager Finance Dete Approved 19 .une 2019
Feview Officer: Director Corporate and Commumity Services Review Zue 17 .une 2020
Author Manager Water and Wade Commencement: 19 une 2019
Socunent Number Published External
1. PURPOSE

Tu purpuse of this policy s o ensure ¢ umilonn/Uansparent application of reliel of larger tan normal water
consumptions char e due to the existence of a concealed leak.

2. POLICY STATEMENT

The intent of this policy & o sel oul the process of providing clear and concise guidelines on seeking
consideration of 4 rebate in respect of 2 waler consumplion charge, due to:
o anunapparent plurnbing lailure

* inaccurately registering or non-functioning water meter

3. PRINCIPLES

Residents are responsible for managing their water consumption. This includes manually reading the water
meter and carrying out overnight consumption tests on 3 regular basis to monitor water usage and

consumption patterns il there is concern that there may be a possible leak.

I he council is responsible for repairing water leaks in council-owned infrastructure up to and inclusive of the
water meter.

Residents are responsible for repairing water leaks in the pipes carrying water from the water meter into the
client’s premises, in any internal pipes or plumbing fixtures within the premises, or in any irrigation piping or
garden watering systems.

Subject o any rebale under this policy, the resident is responsible for the payment of the Tull waler notice,
including consumption related to leaks.

31 APPLICABILITY

The council will only consider a reguest for reduction of @ waler wonsumplion charge due W a waler leak
where:
o Lhe leak was a convedled leak; and
* the resident took all reasonable steps to ensure that the leak was repaired within thirty {30) calendar
days; and
* the leak was repaired by a licensed plumber.
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Council will not consider a rebate in the following circumstances:
¢ leaks and/or bursts on internal appliances, fixtures or fittings including air conditioners, dishwashers,
swimming pools, hot water systems, toilet cisterns, valves, internal or external taps
e situations where the leak is visible
o leaks not repaired by a licensed plumber
* plumbing that is not compliant with zovernment regulations
* vacantland

3.2 EXTENT OF REBATE

A reduction in water consumption charges will be granted only once per property per owner per financial
year. There may be exceptional arcumstances where Council will need to assess the situation individually
and advice accordingly.

If the application for a rebate in water consumption charges is granted, the rebate extended to the resident
shall be based on the following:

Lstimated leok = rebote period x average minimum rate x 24
The tollowing scenarios may be applicable:
nario 1 - estim k+ 1 nsumption <= tier mption limi

Tier 1 rebote = estimeted leak x tier 1 consumption chorge rate
Tier 2 rebate = 0

tier 1 consumption limit

Tier 1 rebate = estimated leak - (tier 1 ¢ plion - previous ¢ ion) x tier 1 consumption charge rate
Tier 2 rebote = festimaied leck - (estimated leok - (tier 1 consuraption limit - previous consumption))) x tier 2
consumption chorge rote

nario 3 - when previ on tion > tier nsumption limit

Tier 1 rebote =0
Tier 2 rebote = estimeted leak x tier 2 consumption charge rate
Proposed rebate = (tier 1 rebate ¢ tier 2 rebate) /2

*Consumption rate charges are determined by the lier that the read falls under lier 1 and lier Z are set by

Council and reflect the water charges for volumes of water consumed.
*Consumption will be cross checked with properties located in the immediate vicinity of the subject meter.
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If use of either of the above methods is deemed inappropriate under a given circumstance, either by the
coundil or by the resident, then an alternate methodology may be adopted for determining the "Excess
Consumption due to the Concealed Leak™.

Ihe decision whether to use an alternative methodology and the alternative methodology to be used will be
at the sole discretion of the council.

33 APPLYING FOR A REBATE

The resident must apply in writing for a reduction of water consumption charges due to a concealed leak
using the “Application for Adjustment of Water Consumption” form as specified by the council Attachment
1). The application must outline the location and circumstances of the concealed leak, including the
conditions to be met under section 5.2 of this policy and complete all sections of the form.

The application must be made to the council for relicf within thirty [30) calendar days of the water Icak notice
or the resident becorning aware of a pussible water leak vie Council notification. The Council will only accept
one application per property per financial year.

Council's minimum rebate amount is set at $20.

The application must be accompanied by a detailed plumber's report from the licensed plumber, whao carried
out the repair work, certifying:
* the leak was repaired by the licensed plumber; and
« the date the leak was repaired; and
o the details of the plumbing repairs undertaken; including:
> that the lcak was in the main water supply pipe from the meter to the premises; and
that the leak was in a location and/or of a nature which contributed to it not being evident.

34 NON-FUNCTIONING METER

Where the resident is in dispute as to the accuracy of the installed water meter:
a) the resident shall pay for the water meter to be tested as per the charge in the Register of Fees &
Charges
b} it the water meter is bound to be faulty this charge will be retunded

Where the water meter is found to be faulty the Council will replace the faulty meter.

Council may estimate the water usage during the period which the faulty water meter occurred using all
reasonable information available to Council and adjust the water consumption accordingly. The estimate
could be based on either the following:
* An average of the water consumption over a period of time; or
s An average of the water consumption for the duration of the high water usage shown on the AMR
reading; or
*  Anestimate if average cannot be calculated
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4, SCOPE

This policy applies to all properties connected to the Mareeba Shire Council water reticulation supply with a
Council approved water meter.

S, DEFINITIONS

lo assist in interpretation the following definitions shall apply:

AMR shall mean automatic meter reading deviceis).

Average Consumption shall mean the average of the past three years’ actual water consumption during the
equivalent billing perniod where there has been no major excess waler use detected. Where there is no prior
billing history available, the average Mareeba consumption will be used.

Average Minimum Rate shall mean the average daily minimum (litres per hour) during the rebate penod.

Billing Period shall mean the time between meter readings and does not refer to the time when the bill was
sent, or to the time of payment.

Concealed Leak shall mean a leak that has occurred in the main water supply pipe from the meter to the
client’s property, either underground, under or within concrete or paving or underneath a structure where
the occupant was not aware of its existence and could not reasonably be expected to be aware of its
existence,

Council or MSC shall mean Mareeba Shire Council

Detected Leak shall mean a leak that has been located in the main water supply pipe trom the meter to the
client’s property, either underground, under or within concrete or paving or underneath a structure and has

been repaired by a licenced Plumber

Leak Period shall mean from the leak start date to the date of the first threshold pulse after notification.
Leak Start shall mean the date of the last threshold pulse prior to notification.

Litres per hour is the consutmption/delay x 3600.

Notification shall mean the issue date of Council's first potential water leak notice to the property owner in
the relevant financial year.

Policy shall mean this “Water Leak Management” Policy.

Previous Consumption shall mean the total property consumption prior to the leak in the relevant financial
year.

Rebate shall mean as defined in section 5.3 of this policy.
Rebate Period shall mean leak period where the leak is fixed within 30 calendar days after notification, or
leak start to 30 days after notification if the leak is not fixed within 30 days of notification

Resident shall mean a property owner being supplied water by the council.

Residential Property shall mean properties classed as residential on Council's rating system.

Page 4 0l 5

Page 74 of 115

Iltem 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 104



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

I Water Leak Management Policy 2019/20 I

Threshold Pulse shall mean 8.333 litres per hour or less {less than 200 litres per day).

Tier 1 Consumption Charge Rate shall mean the Tier 1 Consumption Charge identified within the Fevenue
Statement as adopted by council each financial year.

Tier 1 Threshold Limit shall mean the maximum volume on which the Tier 1 Consumption Charge rate will
be applicable as identified within the Revenue Statement as adopted by council each financial year.

Tier 2 Consumption Charge Rate shall mean the Tier 2 Consumplion Charge wentified within the Revenue
Statement as adopted by council each financial year

6. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be formally reviewed every year or as required
by Council.
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S%% Mareeba
Rate Rebate and Remission Policy 2019/20 SHIRE COUNCIL
Policy Type Council Policy Version: 10
Responsible Officer ‘ Manager fFinace ' Date Approved ~ 12 June 2012
Review Cfficer . Director Corporate aad Community Services ‘ Review Due: . 17 June 2020
Author . Manager Finace . Cormercement: ’ 13 lune 2019
Docuinent Number. ‘ Published. . Externial

1 PURPOSE

This document sets out Council policy, as per annual budget resolution, in relation to the granting of rebates
and remissions on rates and charges.

2. POLICY STATEMENT

To identify target groups and establish guidelines to assess requests for rates and charges remissions in
relation to ratepayers who are in receipt of an approved Government pension and non-for-profit
organisations.

3. PRINCIPLES

31 PENSIONER REMISSION

Applicants for the remission of rates from the Mareeba Shire Council and the State Government must satisfy
the following conditions:

. If an application is mailed in, it must be completed in detail and accompanied by a copy of both sides
of the current Pensioner Concession Card (PCC) or a DVA Gold Card.

. An applicant must truthfully and correctly supply all information requested.

. The Council Pensioner Remission is allowable on only one property at a time

. A new application must be lodged if you chiange your address.

. Should all owners not be in receipt of a pension or allowance, a proportionate amount of remission

may be payable based upon State Government Guidelines.
. If & co-owner is in a spousal or recognised de-facto relationship and is an approved pensioner and is
wholly responsible for payment of all rates and charges, the subsidy will be granted in full.

3.1.1 Council Pensioner Remission

Council grants a3 remission of thirty percent (30%] of the zeneral rates up to a maximum of $240 per year to
pensioners within the Mareeba Shire Council arca, providing they qualify for a remission in accordance with
the conditions, as set oul below.

This excludes water usage charges, special rates or special charges, interest and other charges on land.
Page 10f6

Page 76 of 115

Item 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 106



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

I Rate Rebate and Remission Policy 2019/20 I

To be eligible you must be:
¢ Aholder of a Pensioner Concession Card (PCC) or a DVA Gold Card.
* The owner or life tenant of the property which is your principal place of residence. A life tenancy
can be created only by a valid Will and is effective only after the death of the property owner. or by
a Supreme or Family Court Order
¢ Legally responsible for the payment of local council rates and charges levied on that property.

Ihe Council Pensioner Remission is allowable on only one property at a time and a new application must be
lodged if you change your address.

The Council Pensioner Remissions can unly be granted from the date on the pension card or 1 July 2019
(whichever is the latter), provided the application quahfies with Council’'s conditions.

Where the Council Pensioner Remission applies, Council will remit the appropriate amount off the rates
notice.

3.1.2 State Government Pensioner Remission

In addition to the remission allowed by Council, the State Government Scheme for Subsidisation of Rates and
Charges payable to Local Authorities by Approved Pensioners is administered by the Council and under this
Scheme, a further 20% remission is allowed to approved Pensioners up to a maximum of $200.00 per annum
on rates and charges and 20% off the Emergency Management Levy.

Where the State Government Pensioner Remission applies, Council will remit the appropriate amount off the
rates notice and claim the reimbursement from the State Government.

3.2  COMMUNITY GROUP RATE AND CHARGE REMISSION

321  Eligibility

Community groups eligible for rate and charge remission are defined as:
a) A not for profit, incorporated group or association of persons with the primary aim of
conducting activities and providing services for community benefit; and
b) The community group relies predominantly on volunteer labour, community fundraising,
membership fees and donations;
¢} The community group does not receive state or federal government operational grants and
does not rely on a tee tor service business model

Eligible community groups must:

* Operate within the boundaries of the Mareeba Shire Council;

¢  Own or lease and occupy the land on which the general rates are being levied and the rates notice
issued in the Group's name;

¢ The property must not be used for residential purposes unless utilised for short-term
accormnmodation for homeless and at risk persons or for sceommodation of the aged;
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¢ Not utilise gaming machines to raise revenue;

¢ Inits constitution clearly prohibit any member of the Group making private profit or gain either from
the ongoing operations of the Group or as a result of the distribution of assets if the Group was
wound up (this condition does not apply to the owner of a cultural icon);

e Meet the definition of a not-for-profit community group as per Mareeba Shire Council Community
Partnerships Program Policy;

* Not have outstanding rates on the property.

* The remission is not available on vacant land.

3.2.2 Types of Remissions

Council grants a remission to Council approved not-for-profit community, recreation and sporting Groups,
based on the level of commerciality of the Group. Council is committed to supporting not for profit
community Graups ta have access to attordable space for community activities but excludes the subsidisation
of commercial activity. This assistance applies to eligible community groups in the shire, irrespective of
whether or not they occupy Council land or facilities.

Therefore, community Groups are assessed, according to their level of commerciality, and assigned (by
Council) ta one of two community group types:

* Type ACommunity Group - limited commerciality
e Type BCommunity Group - substantial commerciality

This catezorisation not only enables Council to make available fair, reasonable and transparent assistance to
each community group, depending on their level of commerciality, but it also recognises that community
groups can change over time experiencing increased or decreased levels of commerciality and the group's
categorisation can be changed accordingly.

Council will offer a higher level of assistance to Type A Community Groups than those assessed as Type B
Community groups

3.2.2.1 Assessing Type A Groups: Limited Commerciality

The group's revenue raising streams are limited to membership fees, community donations, minor event
charges, rafflcs and other fundraising and food canteen. If the group has a bar, then patrons are mainly
members and limited profit is made.

3.2.2.2 Remissions Granted to Type A Groups

The following rebates and remissions are available to eligible Type A Community Groups:
e Rate Remission: One hundred percent (100%) of the general property rates per year;
o Charge Remission: One hundred (100%) per year on Utility Charges {Sewerage and Water
Access Charges) and the Waste Management Charge.
e Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Special Charge and local SES Lewy: One
hundred percent i 100%) of the | evy/Charge.
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e The State Fmergency Management levy is collected by Council on behalf of the State
Government o no remission or rebate from Council is available to community groups.

3.2.2.3 Assessing Type B Group: Substantial Commerciality

The group's revenue raising streams include those of Type A Groups but also include the regular operation
of a bar and commercial kitchen, charge industry recognised gate entry fees and commercial sponsorship.
Community groups who operate gaming machines are not eligible for rate rebates and charge remissions.

3.2.2.4 Remissions Granted to Type B Groups

The following rebates and remissions are available to eligible Type 8 Community Groups:

¢ Rate Remission: Fifty percent (S0%) of the general property rates up to a maximum of $1,000
per year;

e Charge Remission: Twenty percent (20%) up to 3 maximum of $200 per year on total Utility
Charges (Sewerage and Water Access Charges) and the Waste Management Charge;

* Volunteer Brigade Equipment and Maintenance Special Charge and local SES Levy: One
hundred percent {100%) of the Levy/Charge.

e The State Emergency Management Levy is collected by Council on behalf of the State
Government so no remission or rebate from Council is available to community groups.

3.2.3 Application and Continuation of the R

The remission/s, if approved, will apply from the start of the rating period in which the application was
successful and will be shown on the rates notice.

Applications for Rate and/or Char ge Remission will only be considered for not-for-profit, community groups
as defined abave and which comply with all the eligibility criteria.

There is a responsibility upon the not-for-profit, community group to contact the Council when there is a
change that could affect the status of the remission so as to avoid the necessity for the Group to reimburse
the remission so obtained, including changes in the level of commerciality of the Group

Where the Rate and Charge Remission applies, Council will remit the appropriate amount off the rates notice.
3.2.3.1 Application Process for Community Groups with Council Lease

o Council will allocate Rate Rebate and remission entitlements to eligible Community Groups
with a Council Community Lease.

* Itis the responsibility of the Community Group to contact Council should the Group believe
it has not been granted these entitlements.

o Council may need to conduct a site inspection and / or request further information.

o Ifin circumstances where 3 Group does not fulfil its lease obligations, the remission may be
cancelled.
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3.2.3.2 Application Process for Other Community Groups

e Aninitial application using the approved form must be lodged and approved applicants are
reviewed annuaily for eligibility.

o The application must also include any two of the following supporting documentation:

A copy of the Group's constitution or certificate of incorporation;
Minutes of its most recent Annual General Meeting;

fe Incorporated groups are to provide a copy of their most recent audited financial
statement (no greater than 12 months old), unincorporated groups are to provide a copy
of their most recent reconciled financial statement {no zreater than 12 months old);
Details of the Group's not-for-profit status from the Australian Taxation office or similar.

The Local Government Regulation 2012 - Chapter 4, Part 10 Concessions, gives local governments the power
to grant concessions for rates and charges.

A concession may only be of the following types:

(a) a rebate of all or part of the rates or charges

(b) an agreement to defer payment of the rates or charges

{c) an agreement to accept a transfer of unencumbered land in full or part payment of the rates or
charges

A concession may only be granted by resolution of the Council and for the Mareeba Shire Council; this is done
as part of the annual budget adoption process and also noted in the adopted Revenue Statement.

3.3  WATER CONSUMPTION DONATION

Council will consider providing a donation towards water consumption costs for eligible community groups,
if water consumption exceeds $100 per annum. To be eligible for financial assistance community groups
must also meet the cligibility criteria as per sections 8 and 9 of the Community Partnerships Program policy
and meet the definition of a community group as defined below:

a) Anot for profit, incorporated group or association of parsons with the primary aim of conducting
activitics and providing services for community benefit; and

b} The community group relies predominantly on volunteer labour, community fundraising,
membership fees and donations;

¢} The community group does not receive state or federal government operational grants and does
not rely on a fee for service business model.
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Eligible community groups are classitied by Council into three (3} categories depending on water usage and
a level of assistance is provided to each category as follows:

Group 1: Community groups watering playing fields and large public lawns/grounds
Assistance: 35% of actual annual water consumption up to a maximum $2,000 donation
Group 2; Community groups watering for dust suppression eg Horse and pony clubs, rodeo

associations

Assistance: 35% of actual annual watcr consumption up to a maximum $1,000 donation
Group 3: Community groups using water for human consumption and gardens
Assistance: 35% of actual annual water consumption up to a maximum 5500 donation

Requests for a donation for water consumption fees will be considered throughout the year and must be
made in writing by letter or email to the Community Wellbeing Officer, Mareeba Shire Council. Approved
requests will be paid as a donation on the rates notice to offset the costs of water consumption and will apply

from the next rating period after approval is granted.

4, SCOPE

This policy applies to:

¢ Pensioners who own and reside on their property within the Mareeba Shire Council area and who meet
the requirements set out in this document.

* Not-for-Profit community, recreation and sporting groups who meet the requirements set out in this
document.

5, DEFINITIONS

Council - Mareeba Shire Council

6. RELATED DOCUMENTS AND REFERENCES

Locol Government Regulation 2012

Mareeba Shire Council Revenue Policy

Marccba Shire Council Revenue Statement

Mareeba Shire Council Community Partnerships Program Policy

7. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be formally reviewed annually or as required by
Council,

Page 6 0l 6

Page 81 of 115

Iltem 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 111



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

APPENDIXD WATER & WASTE CONCESSIONS FOR HOME RENAL DIALYSIS POLICY 2019/20

Woater and Waste Concessions for Home Renal Mareeba
Dialysis Policy 2019/20 SHIRE CoUNEt
Policy Type Council Policy version: 10
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1. PURPOSE

This policy was formulated to ensure the uniform/transparent application of relief from water consumption
charges and the provision of an additional waste collection service for those patients undergoing home renal
dialysis treatment, within the Mareeba Shire Council.

2, POLICY STATEMENT

This policy will establish specific guidelines for e stafl and the public regarding the provision of & walter
usage concession and increased waste collection to ratepayers and residents required to operate a home
renal dialysis machine in their principal place of residence.

3. PRINCIPLES

Mareeba Shire Council provides financial assistance to the property owner to offset water usage costs for
users of home renal dialysis equipment. Council can also provide additional waste collection to properties
where home dialysis patients reside.

31 WATER CONCESSION RATES

The relief is to be applied to the metered property at which the patient resides and if the patient is not the
owner, on the understanding that the owner will pass the benefit onto the tenant. Council will seek
confirmation from the Cairns Ilinterland Hospital and llealth Service as to the property address of patients
currently dialysing at home and the applicable level of water consumption for this purpose. It is based on
the information provided by the Health Scrvice that cligibility for the concession will be applied, is
determined.

Once it has been established that the concession is to apply the responsible officer is to grant an allowable
consumption of 7.5 kilolitre per billing period in cases where the patient is using a low volume dialysis
machine {for example the NxStage™ PureFlow ™ SLi and 96 kilolitres per billing period in cases where the
conventional (Freseniousjhigh volume dialysis machine is used.

32 ADDITIONAL KERBSIDE SERVICE

Council will provide an additional wheelie bin service (for dialysis packaging! for the property at which the
patient resides. The free additional wheelie bin will not apply if there is not currently a kerbside service
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available due to truck accessibility issues (i.e. rural lotsi and/or availability of site storage. The wheelie bin
needs to be presented kerbside on the usual collection day.

33 ELIGIBILITY
To be eligible, the following must occur:

* An application form from Council must be completed by the applicant.

¢ Confirmation from the Cairns Hinterland Hospital and Health Service advising that treatment is being
undertaken by a resident of the property including the commencement date of the treatment and if
applicable the date the dialysis ended.

* The application form must be received by Council prior to the end of the discount period of the first
concession being applied.

3.4  APPLICATION FOR CONCESSION APPROVED

If the application for water concession is approved the water consumption and consequent charges will be
adjusted accordingly and an amended rate notice issued to the owner of the property, subject to the
eligibility conditions above.

Thosc paticents requiring additional waste services will need to apply and if approved will be supplicd with an
extra waste collection each week.

Itis the responsibility of the applicant to advise Council if home renal dialysis is no longer undertaken on the
premises. However, confirmation will be sought from the Cairns and Hinterland Hospital and Health Service

on at least an annual basis that home renal dialysis is continuing. The concession will cease to apply when
home renal dialysis treatment is stopped.

35 APPLICATION FOR CONCESSION DENIED
In the instance where the application for concession is denied the Water and Waste Department will contact
the applicant explaining the reasons for the denied application.

3.6 CALCULATION OF CONCESSION
Consultation with Cairns and Hinterland Hospital and Health Services requesting guidance as to the likely
water consumption and waste generated directly attributable to the operation of a home renal dialysis unit.
This report is based upon that advice as outlined in the following tables:

3.6.1 Table One

Water Usage Assumptions Based on Fresenius Dialysis Machine

Frequency of treatment 5-6 treatments per week
Length of each treatment 5 hours per treatment
assuming:
= 30 minutes hotrinse
before treatment

= 4 hours treatment
- 30 minutes disinfection
post treatment
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3.6.1 Table Two
Water Usa!e Assumptions Based on Nx Stage Pureflow Dialysis Machine
Frequency of treatment 5-6 treatments per week
Length of each treatment 4 hours per treatment
assuming:
- 30 minutes Preparation
= 3 hours treatment
- 25 minutes Wrap up
3.6.2 Table One
Estimated Water Usage Calculation for Fresenius Dialysis Machine
2 Litres per minute
300 Minutes per session
600 Litres per session
3,600 Litres per week
3.6 Kilolitres per week
187 Kilolitres per year
3.6.2 Table Two
Estimated Water Usage Calculation for Nx Stage Pureflow Dialysis
Machine
150 ml per minute
240 Minutes per session
360 Litres per session
2160 Litres per week
2.16 Kilolitres per week
112,32 Kilolitres per year
3.6.3 Table One

Estimated Waste generated from Peritoneal patients

1 empty bag, 1 body fluid filled bag,
1 tube

Generated per session

46

Sessions per day

46 empty bags, 4-6 body fluid filled
| bags, 4-6 tubes

Generated waste per day

28-42

Sessions per week

112-252 empty bags, 112-252 body
fluid filled bags, 112-252 tubes

Generated waste per week

1456-2184

Sessions per year
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4. SCOPE

This policy applies to those ratepayers and residents required to operate a home renal dialysis machine in
their principal place of residence

5. DEFINITIONS

Haemodialysis patient shall mean those persons within the Mareeba local government area, who are
registered with Haemodialysis Unit Service, Cairns and Hinterland Health Services, as receiving home renal
dialysis treatment.

MSC shall mean Mareeba Shire Council

Peritoneal Dialysis patient shall mean those persons within the Mareeba local government area, who are
registered with the Peritoneal Dialysis Unit Service, Caims and Hinterland Health Services, as receiving
peritoneal dialysis treatment at home.

Policy shall mean the "Waste and Waste Concession for llome Renal Dialysis Policy’.

Property Owner shall mcan the person or persons to whom a Certificate of Title for owncrship of
land/property is held by the Queensland Department of Environment and Resource Management's Titles

Registry.

Ratepayer for the purpose of this policy, means the person who is registered as the property owner with the
MSC for the purposes of water billing and waste collection

Tenant shallmean a person who is registered as a tenant by way of a tenancy agreement through a registered
property manager or by way of a written agreement with the property owner

6. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be formally reviewed annually or as required by
Council.
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1. PURPOSE

Provisions of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, requires Council to
prepare and adopt this policy as part of Council’s budget each year. The policy contains principles that will
be used for the development of the 2019/20 budget for Council.

2. POLICY STATEMENT

To identify the principles used by Council for making and levying rates and utility charges, exercising powers
o grant rebates and concessions, for recovering unpaid amounts of rates and charges and the setting of
miscellaneous fees and charges.

3. PRINCIPLES

31 THE MAKING OF RATES AND UTILITY CHARGES

a) In general, itis Council’s policy that a user pays principle applies to all specific services provided to
ratepayers and other users in Mareeba Shire Council.

b} Exceptions to the user poys principle include general services to the community as a whole when it
is in the community interest to do so.

¢) Council will have regard to the principles of:

.
-
.

Iransparency in the making of rates and charges;

Having in place a rating regime that is as simple and inexpensive as possible;

Fquity by ensuring the tair and consistent application of lawful rating and charging principles,
without bias, taking account of all relevant considerations, and disregarding irrelevancies such
as the perceived personal wealth of individual ratepayers or ratepayer classes; and

Flexibility to take account of changes in the local economy.

d) In pursuing the abovementioned principles Council may avail itself of the following:

L B I 4

A system of differential general rating
Minimum general rates

Utility charges

Special rates and charges

Separate charges
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e limitation of rate increases (rate capping)

32 LEVYING OF RATES AND CHARGES

In levying rates Council will apply the principles of:

* making clear what is the Council's and each ratepayer's responsibility to the rating system
{Council may allow a discount for prompt payment);

+ making the levying system as simple as possible to administer;

+  timing the levy of rates where possible to take into account the financial cycle of local
economic activity, in order to assist smooth running of the local economy; and

+  cquity through flexible payment arrangements for ratepaycers with a lower capacity to pay.

33 CONCESSIONS FOR RATES AND CHARGES
In considering the application of concessions, Council will be guided by the principles of:

*  equity,

* the same treatment for ratepayers with similar circumstances;

+ transparency by making clear the requirements necessary to receive concessions, and
* flexibility to allow Council to respond to local economic issues

The purposes for granting concessions are to relieve economic hardship and provide rebates to eligible
pensioners and not-for-profit community, recreation and sporting groups. In addition, Council may grant
concessions on a case-by-case basisifitis satisfied that any one or more of the other criteria in section 120(1)
of the Locol Government Reguiation 2012 have been met.

34 THE RECOVERY OF RATES AND CHARGES

a) Council will exercise its rate recovery powers in order to reduce the overall rate burden on
ratepayers.

b

It will be guided by the principles of:

* transparency by making clear the obligations of ratepayers and the processes used by Council
in assisting them meet their financial obligations;

* making the processes used W recover oulstanding rates and charges clear, and as simple W
administer and as cost effective as possible (refer to Council's Debt Recovery Policy);

*  capatily W pay in detenmining approprate anrangements for different secturs of the
community;

* equity by having regard to providing the same treatment for ratepayers with similar
circumstances; and

* flexibility by responding, where necessary, to changes in the local economy.

35 THE SETTING OF COST-RECOVERY FEES AND COMMERCIAL SERVICES CHARGES

Council will be guided by the following principles in the setting of cost-recovery fees on the one hand, and
commercial services on the other:
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¢ Fees associated with regulatory services will be sat at the full cost of praviding the service or taking
the action for which, the fee is charged. Council may choose to subsidise the fee from other
sources if itis in the community interest to do so.

+ Commercial services charges will be set to recover the full cost of providing the service and, if
provided by a Business of Council, may include a component for return on Council's investment.

3.6 THE EXTENT TO WHICH PHYSICAL AND SOCIAL INFRASTRUCTURE COSTS FOR A NEW
DEVELOPMENT ARE TO BE FUNDED BY CHARGES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

Developers are required to contribute towards the Counal’s infrastructure in accordance with the provisions

of the Planning Act 201 6. Infrastructure charges are required for roadworks, parks, drainage and water and

sewerage head works where applicable.

In addition, social infrastructure costs are to be met by grants received form the Government and general
revenue sources

4, SCOPE

Ihis policy applies to Mareeba Shire Council and all related business activities.

5. DEFINITIONS

Councll refers to Mareeba Shire Council

6. RELATED DOCUMENTS AND REFERENCES

Section 193 of the Locel Government Regulation 2012
Section 10415)(c) of the Local Government Act 2009,

7. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be formally reviewed every year or as required
by Council.
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SHIRE COUNCIL
Policy Type Council Policy Version: 10
Responsible Officer = Manager Finaice Date Approved 12 June 2012
Review Cfficer Director Corporate aad Community Services Review Due: 17 June 2020
Author: Manager Finace Jommercerent 13 June 2019
Document Number: Published: External
1 PURPOSE

To provide Council with an investment policy within the statutory framework of all associated legislation.

2, POLICY STATEMENT

To outline Mareeba Shire Council’s guidelines regarding the investment of surplus funds, with the objective
of maximising earnings within approved risk guidelines, to ensure security of Council funds.

3. PRINCIPLES

31  AUTHORITY

Mareeba Shire Council has been granted authority to exercise Category 1 investment power under Part 6 of
the Statutory Bodies Firancial Arrangements Act 1982 and Schedule 2 Section 5 of the Stetutory Bodies
Financial Arrangements Reguiation 2007.

All investments are to be made in accordance with:

Stetutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982
Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Requlation 2007

32 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Authority for implementation of the Investment Policy is delegated by Council to the Chief Executive Officer
in accordance with the !oen! Government Act 2009, Section 757 (1){b) - Delegation ot |ocal Government
powers,

Authority for the day-to-day management of Council’s Investment Portfolio is to be delegated by the Chief
Executive Officer to the Manager Finance and subject to regular reviews with the Director Corporate and
Community Services and Chief Executive Officer.

3.3 INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

Mareeba Shire Council's overall objective is to invest its funds at the most advantageous rate of interest
available to it at the time, for thatinvestment type, and in a way that it considers most appropriate given the
circumstances. This can include investing in Community Banks even if the rate is not the highest, but within
reason, because part of the Banks’ profits go back into the community to support local projects, groups and
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organisations. If Community Banks have more than one branch within the Council Region, Council should give
consideration to spread funds to all Branches to ensure benefits are gained across the whole community.

In priority, the order of investment activities shall be preservation of capital, liquidity, and return.

3.4  AUTHORISED INVESTMENTS

This policy entitles the following investments;

. Interest bearing deposits

. QTC Capital Guaranteed Cash Fund, debt offset facility, fixed rate deposit {up to 12 months and QTC
Working Capital Facility)

3.5  INVESTMENT GUIDELINES

The following table shows the credit ralings and counterpar ly limits for Mareeba Shire Council:

Short Term Rating iStandard & Poor's) o Individual Maxirnurn % of Total
equivalent Counterparty Limit Investments

Al+ 30% 80%
Al 15% 50%
A2 - Financial Institutions Only 10% 30%
A3 - flingncial stitutions Only 5% 10%
Unrated Nil Nil

QTC Pooled Cash Management Fund 100% 100%

A Financial Institution is defined as an authorised deposit-taking institution within the meaning of the
Banking Act 1959 (Cwith), Section 5.

The Manager Finance may approve himits for unraled securities after being satisfied that adequate analysis
has been performed to demonstrate above average credit quality.

It is noted that for the purposes of this investment portfolio, the percentage limits apply effective from the
date of purchasc as a percentage of the market value of the portfolio.

3.5.1 Investment in Financial Institutions within Local Communities

Investments in related financial institutions within local communities by the Mareeba Shire Council shall not
exceed 10% of the total percentage of the market value of the portfolio.

3.5.2 Maturity
The maturity structure of the portfolio will reflect a maximum term to maturity of one year
3.5.3 Lquidity Requirement

Given the nature of the funds invested, at least 20 per cent of the portfolio can be called at no cost or will
mature within 0-7 days.
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3.5.4 CreditRatings

If any of the financial institutions’ credit rating is downgraded or the credit rating is placed on a negative
watch, Council will revise downwards its credit limits or divest the investment as soon as practicable,

4, SCOPE

This policy applies to the investment of all available funds held by Mareeba Shire Council.

5. DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this policy, investments are defined as arrangements that are undertaken or acquired for
producing income and apply only to the cash investments of Mareeba Shire Council.

6. RELATED DOCUMENTS AND REFERENCES

Stotutory Bodies Finoncial Arrongements Act 1982
Stotutory Bodies Finoncial Arrongements Regulation 2007

7. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. The policy will be revoked and reviewed upon appointment of
a new Finance Manager and/or formally reviewed every year as required by Council.
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SHIRE COUNCIL
Policy Type Council Policy Version 1.¢
Resporsible Oficer =~ Manager Finarce Date Approved: 19 June 2C19
Review O%icer Director Corporate ard Communtty Services Review Due: 17 June 2020
Aather Manager Finarce Commercemert: 19 June 2019
Dacument Namber: Pubhisked. Exterral
1. PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure the sound management of Council's existing and future debt.

2. POLICY STATEMENT

The intent of this policy is to detail the principles upon which Council bases its decisions when considering
the type of expenditure to be funded by borrowing for the financial years 2019/20 to 2027/28, the total
current and projected borrowings and the ranges of periods over which they will be repaid.

3. PRINCIPLES

Council will not use long-lerm debt 1o finance current operations.

Long term debt is only 1o be used for income producing assets or those assels that can be matched 10 a
revenue stream. Consequently, repayments for the borrowings will be funded from the revenue streams
generaled by the assel acquisilion in question. Consideration must also be given Lo the long-term financial
forecast belore planning new borrowings.

Council will utilise long-term borrowing only for capital improvement projects that cannot be financed from
existing sources.

Capital projects are 1o only be undertaken after a thorough process of evaluation [including whole of life
cosling and risk assessment}, prioritisation and review.

When Council finances capital projects through borrowings it will generally pay back the loans in a term not
exceeding 20 years. However, in certain circumstances, particularly assets with long useful lives, borrowings
may be for a longer period whereby repayments would match the income stream of Lhe assel in question,
Existing loans will be paid back within the fixed term provided for in the loan agreement.

Council will continue to ensure repayment schedules are well within Council’s operating capabilily so as 1o
ensure Lhe Communily is nol burdened wilh unnecessary risk.
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Projected Future Borrowing Predictions:

Year Project Term Borrowings

2019720 Mareeba Industrial Estate - extension of 20 3,750,000
Effley to Keegan Street

2019/20 - - -
2020/21 - - -
2021/22 - - -
2022/23 - - -
2023/24 -
2024/25 - - -
2025/26 -
2026427 -
202728
2028/29

Level of Existing Debt - As at 30 June 2019, Mareeba Shire Council’s outstanding loan balance is estimated to
be $5.8M

4, SCOPE

This policy applies to all borrowings of the Council.

5. RELATED DOCUMENTS AND REFERENCES

Section 192 Local Government Regulation 2012
Local Government Act 2009
Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982,

6. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequacy of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be formally reviewed every year or as required
by Council.
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1 PURPOSE

This policy aims to ensure all council officers implement scund contracting principles in the course of day to
day operations to achieve value for money for council, whilst maintaining the principles of the policy outlined
in the following sections.

2. POLICY STATEMENT

This document sets out Council’s policy for the acquisition of goods and services and carrying out of the
procurement principles. This policy applies to the procurement of all goods, materials, equipment and related
scrvices, construction contracts, service contracts (including maintenance) and consultancics. Reference is
also made throughout this document to the Guideline for Workplace Health and Safety, Guidelines for Calling
Tenders and Administering Contracts and the Guidelines for Engagement and Management of Consultants,
each of which must also be complied with in accordance with this policy.

”

and

All Council purchases must be carried out in compliance with the Locol Government Act 2009 (the "Act
the Local Government Regulation 2012 ithe "Regulation™). In particular, Chapter 6, Part 3 - Default
contracting procedures of the Regulation apply.

Council's policy is to support local businesses and industries where practicable to support the viability of local
businesses in all townships within the Mareeba Shire Council area.

3. PRINCIPLES

Council empluyees must have regard W the Tollowing conbiacting principles in all procurement aclivities:
31 VALUE FOR MONEY

Council must harness its purchasing power to achieve the best value for money. The concept of value for
maoney is not restricted to price alone. The value for maney assessment must include consideration ok
. contribution to the advancement of Council’s priorities; and
fitness for purpose, quality, services and support; and

. whole-of-life costs including costs of acquiring, using, maintaining and disposal; and
. internal administration costs; and
- technical compliance issues; and
risk expasure; and,
. the value of any associated environmental benefits; and
. the value of buildinz or maintaining capacity in-house; and
. utilisation of existing inventory items/consumables held in stores/workshop.
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3.2 OPEN AND EFFECTIVE COMPETITION

Purchasing should be open and result in effective competition in the provision of goods and services. Coundil
must give fair and equitable consideration to all prospective suppliers.

33 DEVELOPMENT OF COMPETITIVE LOCAL BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY

Council encourages the development of competitive local businesses and industry within the Mareeba Shire
Council.

Local Business Preference

In accordance with section 104(3)(c! of the Act, Council wishes to pursue the principle and objectives of
enhancing the capabilities of local business and industry as part of the process of making its purchasing
decisions. For this purpose local suppliers shall be allowed certain concessions in respect to contracted
arrangements:

(i) Price

Prices offered by local suppliers shall be considered to be comparable with non-local suppliers where
the local supplier’s offered price is no more than 10% higher (up to the tolerance of $5,000) than the
lowest priced offered. (Eg the local supplier can be evaluated as price comparable when the local
supplier price is less than or equal to the non-local supplier price, excluding GST + 10%, where the
10% margin is less than 55,000.)

(1) Local Business Development

In the evaluation of tenders or offers, Council may attribute a portion of the selection criteria to local
business preference. The score weighting applicd to the local business preference criteria shall be
no more than a2 10% hting within the Il criteria (100%).

5

In order to apply the Local Business Preference component, employees must seek and evaluate tenders and
offers from non-local suppliers. Itis not intended that this preference be granted at officer discretion.

Subject to the local business preference principles above, where price, performance, quality, suitability and
other evaluation cniteria are comparable, the lollowing areas may be considered in evaluating ofters and
tenders:

creation of local employment opportunities;

more readily available servicing support;

more convenient communications for contract management;
economic growth within the local area; and

benefit to Council of associated local commercial transaction.

L I 2

3.4 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Council promotes environmental protection through its purchasing procedures. In undertaking any
purchasing activities Council will:

(i)  Promotc the purchase of environmentally friendly goods and scrvices that satisfy value for
moncy criteria; and

(i) Foster the development of products and processes of low environmental and climatic impact;
and
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(il

(iv]
(v)

3.5

Provide an example to business, industry and the community by promoting the use ot
climatically and environmentally friendly goods and services; and

Encourage environmentally responsible activities; and

Endeavour to reduce, recycle and reuse surplus and scrap materials.

ETHICAL BEHAVIOUR AND FAIR DEALING

Council employees involved in purchasing are to behave with impartiality, fairness, independence, openness,

integrity,

and professionalism in their discussions and tiations with |

> PP

s and their representatives.

All employees must:

(i)
(i)

(iiil
(ivi
(v)

(vil

Perform the procurement task honestly and without favour or prejudice; and

spend Council funds efficiently and effectively and in accordance with the law and Council
policy; and

deal fairly, impartially and consistently with suppliers and prospective suppliers; and

keep confidential all sensitive information obtained as part of the procurement activity; and
not have an actual contlict of interest in relation to the procurement activity; and

not scck or accept any remuncration, gift or advantage.

The use of probity advisors or probity auditors shall be considered where the large-scale procurement
arrangement is sensitive, highly complex, of public interest or likely to be challenged.

3.6

COMPLIANCE WITH MSC WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES

If the site is @ workplace for the purposes of the WHS Act, from the date of acceplance of the Tender
Response of the Contractor by the Principal (by Letter of Acceptance) until completion of the Work under
the Contract:

* the Principal isd d to have appointed the Contractor the principal contractor for the purposes
of section 293 of the WHS Regulation 2011; and

¢ the Contractor is deemed to have accepted the appointment in Clause 293(2) of the WIS Regulation;
and

* for the purposes of the execution and completion of the Work under the Contract, the Contractor is
responsible for performance of the functions of the principal contractor under the WHS Act and any
regulations made under the 'WHS Act.

The appointment of the Contractor a5 the principal contractor under the WHS Regulation continues for the
period specified in the letter of appointment. The Principal may revoke the appointment of the Contractor

as the pri
time

The Cont

ncipal contractor under the WHS Act by giving reasonable written notice to the Contractor at any

ractor must indemnify and keep indemnified the Principal against all liabilities which may be

imposed under or which may arise out of enforcement of any provision of the WHS Act or any associated
regulation,

If & work

caused iliness, work injury, serious bodily injury or dangerous event occurs of or incidental to the

execution or completion of the Work, the Contractor must promptly give written notice of the occurrence of
the event to the Principal.

If the Site is @ workplace and more than one contractor is appointed by the Principal to undertake work at

the Site ¢

Uthe same Lime, Clauses 19.2 10 19.4 inclusive of the WHS Act apply.
Pege 30014
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To ensure compliance with
. Work Heoith and Sofety Act 2011,
. Work Heaith ond Scfety Regulation 2011
. AS/N7S 150 31000:2018 Risk Management - Principles and Guidelines,

Council employees involved in purchasing are to abide by Council's Workplace Health and Safety
Procurement procedures iGuideline — WP3.6.1 Purchasing and Supplier Control).

4. SCOPE

4.1 PURCHASES UNDER $15,000 (EXCLUSIVE OF GST)

All purchases must be duly authorised by an officer with a financial delegation up to their authorised limit.
Purchase requisitions and orders must be raised in Council’s electronic purchase order system. Incases where
an identified need exists for purchases to be made outside of normal working hours or in cases of emergency,
a Manual Purchase Order (“Field Order”) may be used. Please note that all purchases made as an emergency
must be retrospectively reported to Council.

Employees must comply with Section 104 ~ Sound Contracting Principles under the Act, irrespective of the
size of the procurement. Pequisition and order splitting to reduce the value of one larger procurement
transaction into a number of small transactions, is strictly prohibited by this policy.

Employees shall aggregate procurement of like materials and services to the extent possible in order to
obtain better value for money from suppliers. Procurement of items and services on a piecemeal basis is
generally not accepted.

4.2 MINOR AND PETTY CASH PURCHASES UP TO $100 (EXCLUSIVE OF GST)
Purchases of minor amounts of goods and services to the value of $40 may be made from petty cash as an
expense reimbursement. However, expense reimbursements of up to 5100 may be made by petty cash
where an emergency or immediate payment is required.
Petty cash reimbursements are to be made only when a petty cash voucher has been completed and duly
supported by relevant documentation and approved by an authorised person other than the person making
the claim.
Normal expenditure such as telephone/mobile phone reimbursement is to be made through an expense
reimbursement claim to accounts payable and duly supported by relevant documentation. These types of
transactions shall not be paid through Petty Cash
Please refer to the Petty Cash Procedures for further information.

43 PURCHASES UP TO $2,000 {EXCLUSIVE OF GST)

Purchascs of goods and scrvices to the valuc of $2,000 must be raised in Council's clectronic purchase order
system. There is no requirement for multiple quotes for purchases up to $2,000.

Low value items (purchases valued at less than $2,000) may be made by corporate credit card where
purchases are irregular and where it is more cost effective to do so.
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4.4 PURCHASES BETWEEN $2,000 AND UP TO $15,000 (EXCLUSIVE GST)

Goods and services acguired between Lhe values of 52,000 and 515,000 (Ex GST? must be made through the
Council's electronic purchase order system.

Goods or services to this value require a minimum of two (2) written {or faxed/emailed) quotes except where
the acquisition was an emergency purchase or acquired from a sole-supplier or under a formal preferred
supplier arrangement. Details of quotes are to be input into the purchase requisition, attached toc the
requisition and provided to the authorising officer for evaluation either electronically or in hardcopy.

In cases of a genuine emergency or where 3 sole supplier exists 2 notation shall be included in the electronic
purchase order system field.

Where a preferred supplier arrangement is being used, the contract number of the preferred supplier
arrangement shall be placed in the relevant field within Council’s electronic purchase order system

4.5 MEDIUM SIZED CONTRACTS - PURCHASES BETWEEN $15,000 AND $50,000 (EXCLUSIVE OF GST)
Section 225 of the Regulation states that a local government cannot enter into a medium-sized contract
unless it first invites written quotes for the arrangement, and requires that:

(1) The invitation must be given to at least 3 persons/entities who the local government considers
can meet the requirements, at competitive prices, and

(i)  The local government may decide not to accept any of the quotes received.

(i If the local government does decide to accept a quote, it must accept the quote most
advantageous to the organisation, having regard to the sound contracting principles in section
104.

Certain exceptions to the above requirements exist. See section 4.14 of this policy for further details.

Records of offers received must be kept on file along with decisions made regarding sound contracting
principles, input into the purchase requisition and provided to the authorising officer for evaluation,

In relation to the purchase of fleet and plant, a minimum of three (3) sealed quotations must be sourced for
each and every asset under 5200,000, no matter its purpose, Where a supplier is invited to quote and the
same manufacturer has an alternate representative within Mareeba Shire Council, they must also be invited
to quote. When inviting suppliers to quote, the oniginator must ensure that all suppliers for that particular
asset are invited to quote. Specifications must not be developed as to advantage or disadvantage a supplier
therefore creating anti-competitive behaviour. Where purchases of fleet and plant are 5200,000 or
above, they are to be treated as Large Sized Contracts.

4.6  MEDIUM SIZED CONTRACTS - PURCHASES BETWEEN $50,000 AND $200,000 (EXCLUSIVE OF GST)
Section 225 of the Regulation states that a local government cannot enter into a medium-sized contract
unless it first invites written quotes for the arrangement, and requires that:

(i} Ihe invitation must be given to at least 3 persons/entities who the local government considers
can meet the requirements, at competitive prices,

(i)  The local government may decide not to accept any of the quotes received.

(iiil  If the local government does decide to accept a quote, it must accept the quote most
advantageous to the organisation, having rezard to the sound contracting principles in section
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Further to the regulation, Council requires that:
(i)  these quotes must be sealed and be delivered via the Tender Box or Electronic Tender Box.

(i)  Suppliers are to be given a minimum of seven (7) days to provide their quotation.

Certain exceptions to the above requirements exist. See Section 4.14 of this Policy document for further
details.

Please reter to the Guideline tor Calling Tenders and Administering Contracts for turther information.
Records of offers received must be kept on file along with decisions made regarding sound contracting
principles, input into the purchase requisition and provided to the authorising officer for evaluation.

4.7 LARGE SIZED CONTRACTS - PURCHASES ABOVE $200,000 (EXCLUSIVE OF GST)

Section 226 of the Regulation states that a local government cannot enter into a large-sized contract unless
it fiesUinvites writlen tenders in accordance with section 228,

Section 228(2) requires that Council invite written tenders under section 228(4) or invite expressions of
interest under section 228(5) before considering whether to invite written tenders.

Please refer to the Guideline for Calling Tenders and Administering Contracts,

43 LARGE SIZED CONTRACTS - INVITATIONS TO TENDER
Section 228(4) of the Regulation specifies the invitation must be advertised in a newspaper circulating
generally in Council’s local government area and aliow at least 21 days after the day of the advertisement for

the submission of tenders.

If Council changes its tender specifications, and the origingl Invitation 0 Tender documentation allows
Coundil 10 later invite all enderers W change their lenders 10 ke into account changes in tender
specifications, Council may invite all tenderers to change their submissions before a decision is made.

Tenders are to be submitted to the Electronic Tender Box.

Records of tenders received must be kept on file, entered into Council’s electronic purchase requisition and
provided to the authorising officer(s) for evaluation.

Council may decide not to accept any tenders it receives, however, if it does decide to accept a tender, it
must be the most advantageous to Council having regard to the Sound Contracting Principles in Section 3 of
this Policy document.

4.9 LARGE SIZED CONTRACTS - EXPRESSIONS OF INTEREST INVITATIONS
Section 228(3)(a] & (b} of the regulation, requires that where Council believes that it would be in the public
interest to invite expressions of interest before seeking written tenders, this decision must be formally

resolved and recorded in minutes.

The Expression of Interestinvitation must be advertised in a newspaper circulating generally in Council’s local
government area and allow at least 21 days after the day of the advertisement for the submission of tenders.
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Under section 228{6), it Council invites Expressions of Interest, the local government may prepare a shortlist
and invite written tenders from shortlisted parties.

4.10

LARGE SIZED CONTRACTS - VARIATIONS TO TENDER OR CONTRACT

Variation Procedures are as follows:

(i

(i}
{ni)

{iv)

4.11

]

(nh

{iii}

(ivi

Each variation can only be approved by the relevant officer up to their authorised financial
delegation then by a Manager or Director with the appropriate financial delegation.

A signed variation authorisation form is to be attached to the requisition

Fach vaniation requires an additional requisition to the onginal project purchase order stating
the original purchase order ber in the « ts

A separate invoice is to be receipted.

LARGE SIZED CONTRACTS - APPROVED VARIATIONS

The paragraph below details Council's policy for a post acceptance variation, that is, a variation
of a contract after acceptance (by Council or its delegate) of a relevant tender or quotation as
distinct from a variation of Council specification {which forms part of an invitation to tender or
quote] prior to acceptance

When considering any variation, the question is one of whether or not the variation, in
substance, alters the nature of the contract (already entered into by Council) such that further
or more favourable tenders or quotations (depending on whether the cost is more or less than
$200,000) may have been received if the changed specification had been:

a. Advertised - in the case of a tender; or
b. Distributed - in the case of a quotation.

This question applies regardless of whether Council has made a contract for the carrying out of
work, or the supply of goods or services, involving a cost of more or less than $200,000. In other
words, the question applies regardiess of whether Council entered into the contract after a
tender or quotation process.

Subject to the constraints identified in paragraph (i) and (iii), so long as the cost of the variation
to the ariginal purchase order or contract amount is within budget and the financial delegation
of the officer responsible for the approval of the variation, the officer is suthorised to approve
the variation subject to the following:

a. for an original purchase order involving cost between $50000 and $200,000, if the
cumulative value of the variations exceeds 20% of the value of the original purchase order
or 520,000 whichever is the lesser. that varation and all turther variations must be
authorised by a Manager or Director.

b. for an original purchase order involving a cost of more than $200,000, if the cumulative value
of variations exceeds 10% of the value of the original purchase order or 520,000, whichever
is the lesser, that variation and all further variations must be authorised by a Manager or
Director.
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412 SUMMARY OF PROCUREMENT THRESHOLDS

Purchase of Goods and Services

Exclusive of GST Inclusive of GST Documentation required

Less than $2,000 Less than 52,200 One i1) Verbal Quote

52 000 to 515,000 $2,200 to 516,500 Two [2) Written Quotes
$15,000 to $50,000 $16,500 to $55,000 Three (3) Written Quotes
$50,000 to $200,000 $55,000 to $220.000 Three (3) Written Sealed Cuotes
Greater than 5200,000 | Greater than $220,000  Sealed Tenders

4,13  ASSESSING PROCUREMENT VALUE

For procurement arrangements likely to exceed $150,000, employees shall perform a risk assessment to
ascertain whether the entire contract value could exceed the minimum large-sized contracting threshold of
$200,000 (Exclusive of GST), before inviting written quotations.

Where itis likely that the value of the contractual arrangement couid exceed $200,000, employees shall invite
tenders or expressions of interest. Invitations to tender or submit expressions of interest shall be used for all
Schedule ot Rates/Rill of Quantities arrangements lkely to exceed S200,000.

Ihe entire contract value includes contracted sum, possible variations, possible project overruns, project
contingencies, retainers and retentions.

Where, after written quctations have been received, it is clear that the arrangement value will exceed
$200,000 (Ex GST). employees shall return to the market inviting formal tenders or expressions of interest.
In this instance please refer to the Guidelines for Calling Tenders and Administering Contracts.

4.14  EXCEPTIONS TO REQUIREMENTS TO INVITE WRITTEN QUOTATIONS AND TENDERS

The following exceptions apply to medium-sized contracts (value between 515,000 - $200,000) and large-
sized contracts (value over $200,000%.

4.15 REGISTER OF PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIERS - SECTION 232, REGULATION

The arganisation may enter into an arrangement without first inviting tenders or quotations if it is entered
with a supplier from a register of pre-qualified suppliers only where a register of pre-qualified suppliers has
been determined by Council resolution.

A register of pre-qualified suppliers of particular goods or services may be established only if:

] the preparation and evaluation of invitations each time the gnods or services are needed would
be costly; or
(i} the capability or financial capacity of the supplier of the goods or services is critical; or
] {the supply of the goods or services involves siznificant security considerations; or
(ivk  a precondition of an offer to contract for the goods or services is in compliance with particular
standards or conditions decided by Council; or
(v) the ability of local business to supply the goods or services needs to be identified or developed.

A Pre-Quualified supplier is a supplier who has been assessed by the local government as having the technical,
financial and managerial capability necessary to perform contracts on time and in accordance with agreed
requirements,
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4.16 PREFERRED SUPPLIER ARRANGEMENTS - SECTION 233, REGULATION

The organisation may enler inle an arrangement without firstinviting lenders o quotations only where a
preferred supplier arrangement has been determined by Council resolution, where Council:

(i} Needs goods or services in large volumes on a frequent basis; and
(i} Is able to obtain better value for money by accumulating the demand for goods and services; and
(i Is able to describe the goods and services in terms that are well understood in the relevant
industry; and
{ivi  Tenders arc invited for the preferred supplicr arrangement describing the terms of the preferred
supplier arrangement and are in accordance with section 4.8 or 4.9 above; and
(vi  Applies the sound contracting principles in section 3 above; and
{vil Includes terms that allow the contract to be terminated for poor performance; and
(wii} ls entered into for 3 term for more than 2 years only if the Council is satisfied that the
organisation will achieve better value by doing so.
(viiij  Other Exceptions = Section 235, Regulation

Section 235 of the Regulation specifies that Council can only enter a medium or large sized contract without
first inviting quotes or tenders if:

(il Countil resolves thal itis satishied that there is only one suppler reasonably available it ot

(i} Council resclves that, because of the specalised or confidential nature of the services that are
sought, it would be impractical or disadvantageous for the local government to invite quotes or
tenders; or

(il a genuine emergency exists; or

(ivi  the contract to purchase goods is made at an auction; or

(vi  the contractis for the purchase of second-hand goods; or

{vil  the contractis made with, or under an arrangement with a government body.

Sole Supplier is defined as a supplier of goods or services that no other suppliers can provide or with the
constraints of distance it not being viable for other supplers o compete fur the supply of gouds or setvices.,
Cmployees are to comment on how they achieved the knowledgze that a supplier is a sole supplier with
references to communication and description why.

Emergent works considered as late notice of requirements to purchase but still require the full provisions of
the purchasing pelicy. Emergent works that are urgent due to emergency events such as a disaster require
an event to be declared by the state or federal governing bodies, otherwise a Director can declare the
transactions as emergency and only for a short period after the event.

4.17  EXCEPTION FOR LGA ARRANGEMENT - SECTION 234, REGULATION

Under this provision, the organisation may enter into an arrangement without first inviting written quotes or
tenders if the contract is an LGA arrangement.

An LGA arrangement is one that has been entered into by LGAQ Ltd or an associate entity which LGAQ Ltd is
the only shareholder, such as Locol Buy which is the Local Government Association of Queensland's

procurcment scrvices company.

The term Local Buy does not mean Council’s local business preference described in section 4.4 of this policy.

Pege 90l 14

Page 102 of 115

Iltem 7.2 - Attachment 1 Page 132



Special Council Meeting Attachments 19 June 2019

MSC Budget Volume 2 - 1 July 2019 - 30 June 2020

I Procurement Policy 2019/20 l

4.18 EXCEPTION FOR TENDER CONSIDERATION PLAN — SECTION 230, REGULATION

The Coundl may enter into a contract without firstUinviting writlen quotes or lenders if Council dedides, by
resolution, to prepare a quote or tender consideration plan and formally prepares and adopts the plan.

A quote or tender consideration plan is a document stating:

(i} the objectives of the plan; and
(il how the objectives are to be achieved; and

{iiil  how the achicvement of the objectives will be measured; and
(v} anyalternative ways of achieving the objectives, and why the alternative ways were not adopted;
and

{vi  the proposed terms of the contract for the 3oods or services; and
{vil  a risk analysis of the market from which the goods or services are to be obtained

4.19 EXCEPTION FOR CONTRACTOR ON AN APPROVED CONTRACTOR LIST - SECTION 231,
REGULATION

The exception to seek written quotations and tenders from Contractors is available if Council has an
Approved Contractor list and adheres to the following requirements when making the Contractor list:

(i} inviting expressions of interest from suitably qualified persons, by an advertisement in a
newspaper that circulates generally in the local government area; and
(il allowing expressions of interest to be given to the local government for at least 21 days after the
invitation is advertised; and
(nil  choosing persons for the approved contractor list on the basis of the sound contracting
principles.

4.20 ELECTRONIC TENDERING

Tender submissions are te be made clectronically via the Electronic Tender Box.

421  AUSTRALIAN BUSINESS REGISTRATION NUMBER (ABN)

Council will only procure from suppliers who can provide an ABN. The only exception to this will be where a
supplier is eligible to complete the A lian T. Office St by a Supplier form and provides the
completed form to Council prior to making the supply or providing the service to Council.

This exemption may apply in the following circumstances:

(il Asupplier under 18 years of age and the payment does not exceed $120 a week
(il Apayment of less than 575 (excluding GST)
(i) Asupply that is wholly input taxed
{ivi A supplicr who has provided a statement that the supply is done as a hobby of a domestic or
private nature.
(vi  Asupplier who does not expect to make a profit or gain
{vil  Asupplier who is not entitled to an ABN as they are not carrying on an enterprise in Australia
{viil A payment that is exempt income for the supplier.
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4.22  PUBLISH DETAILS OF CONTRACTS WORTH $200,000 (EXCLUSIVE OF GST) OR MORE

Section 237 of the Regulation requires thal as soon as practicable alter entering the conlract, a local
government must publish relevant details on the Council’s website and display relevant details conspicuously
in the Council’s public office.

The relevant details required to be published are:

(il the person or entity with whom Counail contracted; and
(i) the valuc of the contract; and
(i) the purpose of the contract

4.23  DISPOSAL OF LAND AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As per Section 227 of the Regulation, Council must not enter inte a valuable non-current asset contract
{dispusal of & valuable non-current asset) unless it fiestUinvites wiitten tenders for the conlract under Section
228 or offers the non-current asset for sale by auction.

4.24 DELEGATIONS

The Chiet Fxecutive Ofticer has the delegated authority to expend tunds as provided for in the budget, taking
into account all other limitations as set out in this policy. The Chief Executive Officer will establish the
positions and authorised financial delegation limits assigned to each department. The positions so listed are
authorised to contract on behalf of Council or sign requisitions, for expenditure up to their financial
delegation limits. By signing a requisition/purchase order, all employees are confirming that they have taken
full notice of this policy and will comply with all of the requirements of this policy.

A good internal control system in the procurement process requires a separation of duties such that the
whole process from requisitions Lo payments cannot be completed by one person.

To enforce internal control, a small number of employees will be provided with the delegation to release a
purchase order. The main function of this delegation is to check and ensure that Council’s procurement
policics listed above have been adhered to before relcasing the purchasce order. These employees will not be
able to raisc a purchase requisition themsclves but may have a financial delegation to authorise purchases
up to the limit. Similarly, specific functions enforced by Council’s corporate purchasing system require
delegated authority to perform these functions, for example: ability to authorise the posting of large batches
and journals and invoice matching.

4.25 CORPORATE CREDIT CARDS

Please refer to Council's current Corporate Credit Card Policy.

426 SCHEDULE 1 - EXAMPLES OF POLICY BREACHES

Ihe following list represents examples of common procurement practices that constitute a breach of this
policy. This list in not intended to be exhaustive and provides guidance only.

. Inappropriate use of fleld orders ~ When employees have access to computers but do not prepare
requisitions on the system or choose to use field orders for convenience or need to use field orders
due to poor planning on projects.
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Requisition/Order splitting — Where the total value of a procurement transaction is hroken into
smaller pieces (“split”) to bring the value under a certain level to remain within an officer’s delegation
limit or fall into a less onerous procurement category.

Failure to utilise stock, consumables and standardised equipment acquired by Council - In an
attempt to achieve value for money and standardise equipment, Council aggregates common use
items to the extent possible. Common use items may be acquired in bulk, such as stationery, for all
employees to utilise on an as needed basis. Failure to use the items already procured by Council and
acquiring similar items to suit individual preferences represents unnecessary, inappropriate
expenditure (irrespective of whether a budget exists for such items) and does not represent a
legitimate business need.

Inaccurate finappropriate use of sole supplier provision — The use of the term “sole supplier” to justify
procurement where an officer feels that there is only one qualified supplier in the market is inaccurate
and inappropriate and fails to abide by the sound contracting principles within this policy. Sole supplicr
status can usually only be demonstrated by testing the market through request for quotations or
tenders from various parties.

Inaccurate/inappropriate use of “local buy” arrangements ~ Attributing the status of “local buy” to
Council's local business preference and failing to obtain quotations or tenders on the basis that Council
is required to spread its proc t gst the suppliers within the MSC district. Failure to obtain
the relevant numbers of quotes or seek tenders is in direct contravention of the Regulation and
Council's policy. The only legitimate mechanism Council has to obtain services in a Local Buy
arrangement is from the LGAU Local Buy service.

Inappropriate use of “emergency” procurement provisions ~ Failure to adequately plan or schedule
projects and procurement needs resulting in the inability to undertake formal tendering and
quotations due to time pressure does not constitute “emergency” procurement. All emergency
procurement must be retrospectively approved by Council irrespective of the reason it was required.

Historical or informal contracting arrangements - Ad hoc, informal or historical supplier
arrangements that have developed over many yedrs are a breach of s policy. All arrangements with
suppliers must be contracted edher through quotation or lender or salisfy the Lests for exceptions
detailed in the policy.

Unauthorised or implicit contract extensions - Failure to track and renew contracts that have expired,
whilst continuing to utilisc the supplicr’s services. All contracting arrangements entered into by Council
have expiry dates including preferred supplier and pre-qualified supplier arrangements. The expiry
dates may be detailed within the contract or cease when a specific procurement activity or project is
fulfilled.

Knowingly creating inaccurate purchase orders - To generate a purchase order number simply to
provide toa supplier and then amending/varying the purchase order at a later time to reflect the actual
price on the invoice

Procuring items without a purchase order - Subsequently creating or directing the creation of a
purchase order after the invoice has been receved. This example does not apply to utilities invoices,
bank charges. loan pay ts, employee exp claims, which are legitimately processed without
purchase orders.

Acceptance of low value gifts, promotional material, items of interest, giveaways, hospitality, loyalty
bonuses, prizes, supplier events, free or discounted tickets etc ~ Which could be perceived to
engender favour or promote bias when inviting quotations or awarding contracts, irrespective of value,
or when aggregaled these items exceed the dollar Unesholds for dedaration in Council’s Gifts and
Benefits register.
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S. DEFINITIONS

Sound Contracting Principles (SCP) are:
1. Value tor Money; and
Open and tffective Competition; and
Ihe Development of Competitive Local Business and Industry; and
Environmental Protection; and
Ethical Behaviour and Fair Dealing

Ll ol o 2

Medium sized contracts - contracts of value between 515,000 to $200,000 exclusive of GST.
Large sized contracts - contracts of value above $200,000 exclusive of GST.
Local Supplier is a supplier that:
a) is beneficially owned by persons who are residents or ratepayersin the Mareeba Shire Council;
or
b} has its principal place of business/registered office within the Mareeba Shire Council; or
¢) otherwise has a place of business within the Marcceba Shire Council which solely or primarily
cmploys persons who are residents or ratepayers of the Shire.
Non-Local Supplier is a supplier that does not fit the definition of local supplier.

Electronic Tender Box - Council's chosen online portal for receiving quotes and tender submission

6. RESPONSIBILITIES

6.1 EMPLOYEES

All Council employees respunsible for purchiasing goods and services of any kind must comply with this policy.
Itis the responsibility of Council employees involved in the procurement process to understand the meaning
and intent of this policy.

Council employees must undertake procurement activitics in accordance with their delegation of authority.
Failure to comply with the substance and intention of the Act or Regulation may constitute a significant
breach of Council’s Code of Conduct and could carry significant consequences.

Employees are responsible for familiarising themselves with Council’s policies, guidelines and procedures, as
a failure to do so may be accepted as grounds for a breach. Some of these are included in Section 7 Related
Documents.

A number of examples of procurement practices which Council deems to be breaches of this palicy are
included at Schedule 1.

6.2 PROCUREMENT TEAM

The Procurement Team has been cstablished to contribute 3 monitoring and ovcrsuy\x rolc to the
procurcment activity. The responsibilitics of this team include but are not limited to  training cmployeces in
the use of Council's electronic purchasing order system and relevant policies and procedures; reviewing
purchase requisitions for compliance with the Procurement Policy (and other relevant policies and

idelines] prior to releasing them; undertaking compliance checks and reporting findings to management.
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Council has introduced a number of measures to monitor compliance with this policy and its associated
guidelines. Monitoring will occur on an ongoing basis at an officer and department level to identify and track
instances, patterns and recurrence of breaches, for wraining purposes and, where repeated, formal
performance management. This responsibility will be assumed by the Procurement Team.

6.3 MANAGEMENT/SUPERVISORS
Instances of breaches identified by the Procurement Team are to be reported to the employees'
manager/supervisor as soon as is practicable. The manager/supervisor will negotiate a preferred method of

handling the situation with the Procurement representative, which may initially involve further training to be
carried out by the Procurement Team, however, repeated instances may lead to disciplinary action.

7. RELATED DOCUMENTS AND REFERENCES

Advertising Spending Policy
AS/NZS 150 31000:2018 Risk Management - Principles and Guidelines
Code of Conduct
Corporate Credit Card Policy
« Ekntertainment and Hospitality Policy
« Giftand Interests Register
* Guidelines for Calling lenders and Administering Contracts
+  Guidelines tor Fngagement and Management ol Consultants
* local Government Act 2009
* Llocal Government Regulation 2012
Chapter 5, Part 6 - Spending
Chapter 6, Part 3 = Default contracting procedures
¢ Non-Current Asset Policy
«  Petty Cash procedures
o Work Health and Safety procedure: WP3.6. 1 Purchasing and Supplier Control)

8. REVIEW

It is the responsibility of the Director Corporate and Community Services to monitor the adequary of this
policy and recommend appropriate changes. This policy will be tormally reviewed every three years or as
required by Council.
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FORM A APPLICATION FOR ADJUSTMENT OF WATER CONSUMPTION

&5 Rankin Street

g‘ﬂ:l,@ Mare eb a PO Box 154 MAREEBA QLD 4880

SHIRE COUNCIL P: 1300 308 161

F: 0740923323

W: www.ms:.ald.zov.au
E: infofd nycygld guv. au

APPLICATION FOR ADJUSTMENT OF WATER CONSUMPTION
This form is for financial year 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

Privacy Neotlee: Mareeba Shire Councli Is coli g pour p I inft Inace wath the Local Govermment Act 2009 in order to
process your opplication. The information will be only occesced by outhorised Council employees. Your infarmatizn will not be given to any ather
Derson or agency urless yau have given us permission or we ore required by law.
APPLICANT DETAILS
Home Phone
Owner Name/s
Mobile Phone
Postal Address
Email Address
Property Address Property No.

CONSUMPTION DETAILS

REASON FOR ADJUSTMENT OF WATER CONSUMPTION
O Undetected Water Leak

Oves (Attoch copy of plumber's invoice to this form)

Has the leak been fixed by a licenced plumber?
O nNo (Leak MUST be fixed by a licenced plumber}

O Incorrect Meter Reading

l Reading on Rates Nozice ] Reading on Water Meater

O Defective / Faulty Meter O Application Fee PAID ($330.001 Rec #

I & Q6 Ty OWNEr & L8 DWW 3% 20 nterna leaks ad be leves D water meter « fau ty, they can atd for e water mete to Be teated, An asa cat an fee of
$3300.00 (7Y 2019:2020) m.ast 2@ 2aic 3y T proaR Ty N U0 AR It on priar to Councll carnyng @it toe testing. If the wate: metes test confi-ms the mete: '
fau ty / defective, the 322 ket'orfee wil 3¢ ~eluxded a~d tae water usape “ov'ewed. The prope Ty ow e w' | be adv'sed Inw Ung of tie outcame.

Fartoer il mal wy

O Other Reason

Fatasr iafor mat'ow

APPLICANT DECLARATION

luaderstand that by completiag and signing th s application, the Water Censumption will be adjusted as per the above advice,
which could result iv an amount 1o be credited or debited against the above property. | declzre that the above details | have
provided are true and correct. Mareeba Shire Council does not “ake responsibility for the supply of incor-ect into mation. For
maore nfcrmaticn, refer 1o the Water Leak Management Policy In the 2019/20 budzet docurrentation.

Owner Name:

Signature: Date:

Rev 05/2019
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FORM B APPLICATION FOR PENSIONER RATES REMISSION

N\

=

y & b gsug?iga’“&:mammtsao
¢ Mareeba —

N SHIRE COUNCIL F: 074092 3323

W: wwaw.msc gld gov.su
E: Info@rrsc giagov.2u

$:4

APPLICATION FOR PENSIONER RATES REMISSION

Thie forn igfor finandial vear 20092020 - 1 Juk 201910 30Jane 2020

Privacy Notice: Maneeba Shre Councilis collecbng pour personal nfarmo 5an in sxordo e with the Locol Government Aot 2008 inomier [0 process pour app oo ton,
The infommation wall be anly acoessed by outhonied (omol enpoyers. Tow informobar will N be gwen D 0Ny OhT DE50N OF OQENCY UNiE IS FOU Mo W Qe n Us
PEITNBSIIN OF W OF € WG UMD Dy DN,

APPLICANT DETAILS

APPLICANT 1 APPUCANT 2 (i applicable)

Liven Name/s

Surname

Date of Birth

Reda tions hip to
Other Applicant

Phone No.

Pension Card Type D':Er'lt relink D Dept of Veteran's Affairs D:r_\-r.!rr_\- ink D[Ir:pl of veteran's Affairs

Pension Card No.

Card Start Date

Card Expiry Date

PROPERTY DETAILS

Property Address

Pos tal Address
(¥ different from atove)

QUESTIONS REGARDING RESIDENCY
Do you reside at the

above mentoned [ ves [Iwo [Jyes  [no
property?

HNO, please give further
detalls re wingan @
rursing home, curently

in hospital, ving with
family

::r:::l:o;:?:jn:ui:ged D YES |:| NO DYES DNO

For ony furthe: information ia reletionto this application, complete "Further Information” section. over page.
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FURTHER INFORMATION

APPLICANT CONSENT DECLARATION

This covsent wi | 2e used for he sole surpose of authorising Centrelink to provide information to Mareeba Shire Council tc assess
your el g bility in relztion to concessons or sarvices provided by Mareeba Shire Couaal

Applicant 1 (Write FULL name)

Applicant 2 (Write FULL name)

I, the aaplicant/s as ncted above, authorise
+ the Mareeba Shire Council to use Centrelink Confir nation eServices to per‘orm a Centrelink/DVA enquiry of my Centrelink cr

Department of Veterans’ Affairs Customer deta Is and concession card status in order to e jable tye business to determine if |
qualify for a concession, rebate or service,

= Lhie Auslslian Guver nment Deparlinent of Huttian Services (Uw depar limenth lo provide the resu B of Lhal enguity o
Mareeaa Shire Council,

| understand that:
+ the department will use information | have provided to the Mareeba Shire Council ta conf rm my eligibility for pensioner
rates remission and will disclose 10 the Mareeha Shire Coundil personal infarmation incuding my name, address, payment
and concestion card tvpe and status

this eansent, ance signed. remains valid while | am a custamer of Mareeha Shire Couneil inless | withdraw it by contacting
the Mareeha Shire Couneil or the department

.

I can o3ta n proof of my circumsts nces/details from the departrent ind provide it to Mareeba Saire Council so that my
eligitility for penzioner “ates remission can be determined

.

if | withdraw my consent or do not alte natively provide proof of my dircumstances/details, | may not be eligible for the
cancession provided by Mareeba Shire Counci

4 brochure is available f<cm Centrelink that provides more details about the Centre ink Confirmasion eServices or on Centrelink’s
webs e at www humanservices gov.au

Applicant 1 Signature Date

Applicant 2 Signature Date

COUNCIL CERTIFICATION

| hereby cer:ity that | have sighted the Applicaw/s Pensioner Concession Card, issued by either Centre ink or the Departmen: of
Veteran's Affairs,

Full Name

Signature [ Date |

Postion DCounciI Officer Dlustu:eo! the Pezce DCcmmi;suoner for Declarations
OFFICE USE ONLY

Property No. I Applicant 1 Name ID. Applicant 2 Name ID. Effective Date

State Eligibllity % %

State Responsibility % Yo MN/A

Council Eligibility ¥ %

Council Responsibility % % MN/A
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CUSTOMER COPY

Conditions Relating To Council and State Government Pensioner Rates Remissions

Maximum Council Remission - $240.00 per year
Maximum State Government Remission - $200.00 per year

For applicants to be eligible to receive the Rates
Remission ‘rom the Mareeba Shire Council and the
Queensland State Government, they must satisfy the
following conditions:

GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. The applicant/s must own ard reside on the
property for which the Rates Remissions are
claimad. The applican:/s must reside on this
property for the majority of the year. The
applicant/s mus: be legally responsible for the
payment of Rates and Charges levied on tkis
property

2. The applicant/s must be in receipt of a vahd
pension, with at least one owner being the holder
of a current Pensioner Concession Card or a
Departmen: of Veteran's A*fairs Gold Card (for all
conditions).

3. The applicant/s must truthfully and correctly supply
all requested information,

OWNERSHIP CONDITIONS

1. Ar applicant will be granted partial Rates
Remissions if they are a co owner of the property,
with the amoun: of these Remissions 0 be
determined by their proportionate share of the
ownership of property.

2. I¥a co-owner is in a spousal or recognised de-facto
relationship with another co-owrer of the property,
is an approved pensioner and is whaolly responsible
for payment of all Rates and Charges, the Rates
Remissions will be granted in full.

3. Ar applicant who is a life tenant of the propemny car
receive Rates Remissions. A lie tenarcy can be
created only by a valid Will and is effective only
after the death of the property owner, or by a
Supreme or Family Court Order. Wrillen prool of
life z:enancy will be requirad.

LODGEMENT OF APPLICATION

¢ When submitting the application, the applicant/s
must presert their
Persionar Concession Card (PCC) issued by
Certrelink, or
Veteran's Affairs Gold Card (for all conditions)
issued by the Department of Veteran's Affairs.

+ |f an application is posted to Courcil, it must be
completed in full and have the signature of the
applicant/s witnessed by a Justice of the Peace or a
Commissioner for Declarations. The application
must also include 2 certified photocopy of the front
and back of the applicant/s current Pensioner
Concession Card or the Departmen: of Veteran's
Affairs Gold Card (for all conditiors).

+ The applicable Rates Remissions can only be
granted within the financial year in which the
application is lodgad. The applicable Rates
Remissions can only be grantad trom the start date
on the pension card or the start of this current
financial year, whichever is the latter. If Rates bave
been paid in full, the Rates Remissions will be
applied as a credit 1o the property.

e Razes Remissions are only allowable on one
property at any given time. A new application must
be lodg2d by he applicant/s if a transfer of
ownership 1o a new property ocours,

TYPES OF REMISSIONS GRANTED

* Council Pensioner Remission

Council grants a Remission of :Firty percent (30%) of the
Gereral Rates, up to a maximum of 5240.00 per year.

* State Government Pensioner Remission

The State Government grants a Remission of swenty
percent {20%) o the Genzral Rates and Utility Charges
(bzing Sewerage, Water Access, Waste Collection,
Urban and Rural Fire Levies, excluding any Special Utility
Charges), up to a maximum of 5200.00 per year.

Please note: This is only an excerpt of Council's Rates

Rebates and Remissions Policy. To view the policy in
its entirety, refer to the latest Budget documentation.
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FORM C APPLICATION FOR RATES REMISSIONS FOR NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANISATIONS

&5 Firkin Street

__‘5‘:&‘ = Mare eba PO Box 151 MAREEBA QLD 1830

P: 1300 308 461
SHIRE COUNCIL F: 070023522

W= wwra mar cld g an

E: infe@msc.qld.govau

=

APPLICATION FOR RATES REMISSIONS FOR NOT-FOR-PROFIT
ORGANISATIONS
s foemn s for Mancal vear 200972020 1 July 2003 o 3D Junc 2020

Privocy Notice: Mareebo Shire Jowacils, oG FOur FEriOLol WILImPaUCE m OCTONIIAcE with toe Doval 32 rermerant Act 2005 i onder 1o Crocess pour agglizaticr.
The infarmetion wili e caily acccrsod by cuthoriscd Comncsl empoyecs. Your informatuos will ool &6 $wen 10 0oy C 1N 2CIT0N O DRONCY w0lCs) ew Move Given ul
PENIION O w2 are Joquersd By low

APPLICANT DETAILS

Organisation

Contact

Feracn Home Phone

Mobile

Postal
Address

Email |

Property
Address

ELIGIBILITY CONFIRMATION

Does/Is the organisation: Yes No

Property No.

Uperate within the boundanes of the Ma“eesa Shire Counal ?

Swn or lease avd occupy the praperty on which the Rates are being levied and the Rates Notiee is issued in the
| organ sation s name ?

Not using the grogerty for residential purpeses un et utilised for short-erm acconr modztion for homeless and

at r =k persans or for accomrodation cf the aged”

Utilise gaming machines to “aise revenue?

In its congtitution clear y prohibits any member of the organisaticn making 3 private protit or ga n either frem the
ongoing operatios af the organisation or as 2 “esult of the distribution o assess | the organisztion was wound
Mee: tha defivition of 3 not-for-grofit comrunity, recreation and sporting o-ganisation as defined in Council’s
Rates, Resates & Remissioas Policy*

Not have outstanding rates on the property/

Appl cations must include copies of ony two of the fol owing documents with th's applicaticn
[ Tae Orgaciise livn's constituzion v certificate ol imurpotalion
[ Tae miautes ef the most “ecent Annual General Mact ng
[] T organisation's not-fo--prof t status from tae Austrzl an Taxation Office
|:] Far incorporate organisations, the most recent oudited finascial statements ino greater 1aan 12 menths old}
[ or unincorporated arganisations, tae most recent financial statemants (no greater than 12 months old)

APPLICANT DECLARATION

| anderstand that by comaletiag and signing this app ication, the nformation supolied will be used to evaluate the zuthenticity of
the application to determine the orgaaisation’s eligibi ity to receive Rates Remission/s.

I dedlare b U o bove details | have provided are liue and conecl. Mareebia Shine Coundil does nol Ls o responsi dility Tor The
supply of incorrect information.

For more information, refer to the Rotes Rebates and Remissions Policy in the 2019/2020 Budget documentation.

Full Name

Signature [ Date l

Rev 05/2019
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MAREEBA SHIRE COUNCIL
RATES REBATES AND REMISSIONS
POLICY 2019 / 2020

REMISSIONS

=ot Council approvec Type A community Groups - Council grants a rate remission of one hund-ed |100%)
aercent on all gensrcl -atas and a chatge remissior of ore hurcred {100%) seicent on Utiity Cherges
{sewerage. waste collection, waste marcgement ond water access charges!, Velunteer Brigade Equipment
ad Maintenance Specia Charge arc 1ocal SES Levy only.

=or Council approvec Type B commun ty Groups - Council grants a rate ramission of fifty 150%) sercent up foa
maximum of one thousand ($1.00C.00} dollars on ¢ll general rates and a charge remission of twenty |20%;
sercent up to a maximum of two hundred {3200.00) dollars on Utility Chatges (sewerage, waste collection,
waste management and water access chargas). Yolunteer RBrigade Fquipmen® and M.aintenance Special
Charge and ocal SES Levy only

ELIGIBILITY

Tommunity groups eligible for rate and chatge remission are defined as:

+ Aot for orofit, incorporated group or association of persons with the primary am of conducting activities
and prov cing senvices tor commurity henehit: and

The community group relies predominantly on voluateer lkabcur. cemmunity fundraising, membership fees
and donatiors;

The community group dees not eceive state o federal government operational grants and does not rely
on afee ‘of service business model

.

=or a not-for-o°¢fit orgenisation 1o b2 eligib € 10 raceive Remission/s. “hey must salisty tha fol owing conditions:

Meet the defin'tion of a rot-for-profit communty, recreation and sporting organisation. as defined above:
Operale within the boundaiies of the Mcreeba Shive Councit

Ow or lease and occupy the property or which the 2a-es cre being levied and the Rates Not'ce is issued
in the organisation’s name:.

Inits conditution prohibit any member of the orgarisation making a private pto'it from its ongoing
operations. or as a result o° the distribution of cssets in the event of ifs dissoluticn

(this condition does not apply to the owner of a cultuial iconl,

Not have any outstanding Rates on the proparty:

Not utiise gamng machines to raise revenue:

The property must net be used tor residential purpases unless utiised tor short-te'm accarrmodatior to’
homeless and at 1 sk Detsons, o “of accanrmodaticn for the aged.

The property cannot ke vacart larc

.

Type A -limired commrerciality - The group's revenue ra sing straams are imited to memberskip fees,
community donatiors, mnor event charges. “alfies and other fund-aiting and food canteen. If the group
has a bay, Then pahiors cre rmainly ‘nembers and kimiled profil is made,

Type B - substantial commerciality - The group’s tevenue raising shecms include those of Type A Grouss out
alse include the regllar operatior of a bat and commercial kitcken. chaige industty recognised gate entry
feas and commerc ¢l sponsaiship

APPLICATION FOR REMISSION APPROVED

The Remission/s. it approved. will apply ttom the state of the Rating Perod in which the applcation wos
successiul and will be shown on the currant Rates Notice of an amended Ratas Noice will be issued.

t is the responsibility of the organisation Ic contact Councilwhen there s a change 1o Meir situation which
could affect the slalus of The Remission/s. If avu opniale nolice is no' given 1o Council and adjusiments of the
Remission/s are required. the organisat'on could oe liable to reimbuise these adjustments to Council.

APPLICATION FOR REMISSION DENIED

f the application for Remissior/s is denied, the organ sation wil be cortacted in writing explaning the raasen/s
for the denia.

Please note: This is only on excerpi of Councils Rates Rebates ond Remissions Folicy. To view the oalicy in ifs
antirely. refer to fhe 2019/2020 Buoget documentaton
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FORM D APPLICATION FOR WATER AND WASTE CONCESSIONS FOR HOME RENAL DIALYSIS

£5 Rankin Street
\\‘{_’f 20 Box 158 MAREEBA QLD 4880
2% Mareeba
A\ SHIRE COUNCIL . 074092 3323

W: www.msc.gld.gov.au
E: info@msc gldgov.au

APPLICATION FOR WATER AND WASTE CONCESSIONS FOR
HOME RENAL DIALYSIS

PROPERTY OWNER DETAILS

Home Phone
Name/s
Mobile Phone
Pastal
Address
Property
Address ‘ I T ‘ l
PATIENT DETAILS
Home Phone
Mobile Phone
Postal
Address

Residential
Address
HOME RENAL DIALYSIS MACHINE HAS BEEN ISSUED FROM

Doctor or Hospital

Date Machine was Received l Type of Machine

written confirmation from the doctor or hespital must be ctteched 1o this opplcation.

APPLICANT DECLARATION

undersland that by completing and sgning this applcation, the Water Consumplion and/or Waste Service wil b
granied as per the below sicted policy. | deciare that | have not ledged another application for this concession undcr
anclher nome.

declare thal the cbove details | have provided ore Ive ond corecl. Moreeba Shire Council does not lake responsitility
for the supply of ncorect information

For more information, refer to the Water ConcessioniAdditional Waste Servce for Home Renal Dialysis Policy in the 201820 budget documentation

Full Name

Signature ] Date

Rev 052018
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MSC BOUNDARY - MAP 1....
BENEFITED AREAS ...coovsummimrrcrsrssresssssssonsssnssssssssssssssssessssssssnse sssss sssssssssssses sesssssnne 00855088 408ssnnen s0an sess

Irvinebank Water Benefited Area - Map 2... e ettt e e e eantneeea et assainnneeeennnnneeanenans ]
Kuranda And District Aquatic Centre Benefited Area - Map 3 et eeraee B
Kuranda Benefited Area 1 - MAp 4 ..o ittt ettt ee e e e eaaasae e e e etaa s an e e e mrnnnneeaaennns D
Kuranda Benefited Area 2 - Map 5 ... oottt et e e e etaasaeeeeee s s s ssssneeaassassnsenssesessnssneaeaess 10
Kuranda Benefited Area 3 - MAP 6 ....cooueiiiiiiiieeciee st e s eie e e staiiie e e e eta s s s enesaasssssnesassassnsessseesenne L1
Mareeba Benefited Area 1&2 - IMBP 7.t aeeeeee e esiiie e e e etas s s eees e e s ssssnesassasansssnseesenns L2
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